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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEPAL BANGLADESH BANK LTD.
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. (the “Bank”),
and the consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary (the “Group”) , which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 32 Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018), the statement of profit or loss,
the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by subsidiary’s
auditor in terms of their audit report are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. :




auTeT daretie? d@ faifdes | Q0©

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Bank and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank and the Group as at 32
Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018), and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanation asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the statement of financial position,
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and cash flows, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Company Act
2063 and in the format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and they are in agreement with the books of
accounts maintained by the Bank and its subsidiary included in the Group. The accounts and records of
the Bank and its subsidiary are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

In our opinion, the returns from the branches are adequate for the purpose of the audit though the
statements are independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Bank has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for impairment of assets in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations provided to us and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the Bank necessary for the purpose of our audit, the business of the bank
has been conducted satisfactorily, we have not come across cases where Board of Directors or any
employees of the Bank have acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Bank and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a
manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank, its depositors and investors.

Date: December 2, 2018 Rabindrd Rajbhandari=-
Place : Lalitpur, Nepal Partner
RajMS & Co., Chartered Accountants.



QT | duret dareteet da foifdes

EERI RN FCEY ax% L R0 2R IS EYRNT RV o32a R0 aR%EYRA0E 2R 02652002 B2 bRI> @b
- - Z - - - e boR|l> hpblle dRIZR [RARAE lakf
- - - - - - PR khlate |bhyle Rlin
220000223 ERb R TR EFRRIEED 2NN 220'060 23 ERb AR RS ¥on sa 2t ke 'b B8 pR|ID hafe
- - - - - - 1133 BR|lb Mb bLblsd
- - - - - - 3P lizdbho
%R b2 - - wEa by - - % BRYib 2 Dl
- - - - - - be [phlk
220 RS Bk et wot'or2t 23RS LRO 28 220 RS Sk ot Fot'or2%a Eax'orttranr or'R higk) lbwall
- - - - - - Sbha lodbhe RIPb| hRJkyje
oot‘2%%'bt aRRE22"200'b PYCI R 11 oot'2%%'be aRRE2: 200 20k 2% Rk 2h'8 lblb bD| Blodp Xy dlhk
- 000'0%6\ kb - - 000'0¥n\ Kbk - ab's [l BB SIQIRMY RIRB| Leb ®b
2 bRy
232002028 A% S he ‘2000 % RS MEbeat by 232'002'ho28 %% B 2000 % ERS REboab by [T
%hbEea 2 bt R ERR 0% SRS R WOR %hb o0 2 b hETRY 0% SRS WAL RO 3b'R Rlheby Rate
EEINeT Y H borEay'at bo2'bht FE Rl Y borEaya bo=2'bbt 2 %b'a Db Ab blied
22 %20% 23b' %2R NSRS 2 %20%% 23b k2% bha‘a 2%y ab'x Bk Phie > (L) opjel
b2r20%t2b %2 e e R bok b2¥ 205 2) LT E RPN 2532 AR baE gb's ladbhe [P Rk
200'0b¥ax Ero25bt: IREEEYE 200'0bka% Ero'2%bey O ab'a [IRINAR TN
- - - - - - bb'& Pl bl Bhib
- - 000000002 - - - ob'x Bl lblbhd GRIAB
- 20bE%2"% 8 22:'020'b3 - 20bE%2% 2 222'020'b3 %R Rk 2 Bla
302"%00" 220" %%brobaan'a ot% bt 2302 302'%00 220 x SoboboanR'a IR LU 2'8 NIRRT NN
3052 R2boe b SRS AL 20bAE 2RO EE R 20208 303 R2 b b SRS REE 20b%E LhOEER 20208 o' (RhlR kb ok [bhd] b3l
220302 5 %b'b %ei%%2%0t'h 3be‘23%'09t'b 220502 5 %b'b %ea'%%20th 3be‘23% 09t’b 3R 1Rhib lkb ind |ddd| S0l kIR Lsb bbb
- aty'arreh PR TR - atyeirnt e ko EY % @a0jk Gylhike ki
26020x R OERTANS 0002020k 26020 R OERRNS 000'202'0k 2R lodbhe RPb] hRJka|S
a2 'ontte2'b PCER RN RS 20% %00 B REE a2:'ont2e2'b boxen el 10% FOR BRE E B Dibalp |032 Iblfsd RIR) LD bb
a%a‘oba 2225 axrEa% 202 20 batbo%2 ara'oba 232" axxEab'2n%'2 26batb0%2% ®'a 1blpbb LhBQ kb Dibolp 1632 Iheb K Glht
FRIS EY F RV par‘2xenea’h 222 %% % Koa 't PRLRED PR TR IR - 282" %% % oe't b'x blbb blbs D bl
b
= 268 HH
1k @ hpp

(b0t Bl 3b) heor Dalbbk 2kl

102DD] |DIBIDIE RIPP] DDMIA



oIuTeT goreme e d fafdes | 0Q

Qlht ‘|Slbold bl
2bot “d& Meahpll ¢ Rl
BR2:010) §2lk
‘h S0d BA hA Il : i : . . )
DIPIE 220 PRUPD DI MY 2ADRR IPIIE AR D3NP 101eD Rllo otpip Inie 2DI2P Bog
RISalelc> op> A By
Brate bibglie plokle nbkk phpglie bpl BhkK ppl - BhK
DIp2IE WIWIC Lolied DIRM Sopox oIE lanie S0P WI2ID Sopjdp
Abbie LbpPIK Lok (B2 1KLL lbnle
20% o%b %&b 20% 0%b %2b Bk bR ARl DK
2% 'bar 202" 2 abrrar'ar2t R S0 b'oRS bR R 2%t bar 2022 abx2ar'a22% R 0boRS bR 22 IDBBPIK 1R bR|> BRIk
232 '002b02"8 YRR Sbe 2009k ERS REbDRE by 232'002%02%8 ARR Y2009 ERY REbDALbY 1PbbIE ) bipli» b
box'nr0'208 %03 %e2'002'0b Eat'22%ore bh box'a20'20" %03 %e3'002'b trxsob'oza‘bb 1pbb|x 0B
falbx Dkl 2l
b 9% help Siholp FOOAlLRARE
abRoEo2ES'b 002% %1 3b"% %22 h26h06 ® avkRototEy'b 002%%2b% %22 %26'008 ® ax’R CEINE TN
200%:2%22 b ot2%ta2'2ba’b 2332 bRS 200%:2%22 b ot2%e2'2br'b 2eRb0bRY lhikh ben
- - - - - - bR 2kla
000'bbx 20t 02%'2%0 Skt 22 %%e 220 000'bbx k0% 02%'2%0 S br 222 %%e 220 2R uwoh akla

rpmm_w
. w - *

b @ kb



30 | oI doreTaRT do faifdes

efdbdd oirb1 eilaTel fdazor

#TGUT 9, o6 IR MIE 3R, w6y T (& FOI§ 190 IRT 9§ FOIE w9¢ =) e

- e

A
AT T ¥.3% 4,939 3R ¥_Y 359,3¥8 945 4,939 3R ¥RY 359,3¥8 945
S ¥.30 3,%4%,510,308 3934, U¥EHRO 3,%4%,590,209 3938 L¥EHR0
g @S e 9,290,539 455 9,4¥9,800 458 9,290,539 455 9,4%¥9,900,%%%
Iob QAT B AT ¥.3 Q35U LEY SCERR A R3Y,TEYMEY SCERR A
geb AT HATE T ¥.3R 35,3%0,4¥5 3%,5392%% 35,30,4¥5 3¥,5892%%
ga god < PTH I 5%5,594,099 Q¥ 5,358 8409 585,594,099 Y5, 355 549
GE @, Pob X BRTE ArEFl 3,55, ¥R%,%04 3,%¥%0,08,330 3,558, ¥R%,%04 3,%¥%0,08,330
g ARG A< ¥.33 949,5%0,%%3 9%9,3%,0%% 149,520,443 9%9,309%,0%%
I AT T ¥.3% ¥0,3%49,¥50 RREL93] ¥0,3%¢9,¥50 &3]
S Ao IR 3,08883% 900 3,E0%,900 589 3,089£3% 909 3,%4%,900,889
Poll SHieepT rawen/(foel) T o/ AR ¥.3Y 385,598,543 36,033,%%% 385,598,543 36,033,%%%
G Haod srarl 3,95, 940%,55 ¥ 3,£39,085 950 3,955, 9%, 55 % 3,%39,0%5,9%0
RCIGEIRCE |
FHAR Td ¥.3% By EYR, 393 %30,00885¥ BYY TYR,R93 §R0,00985%
I e ¥.39 3¥9,99%,39 309,0%% 390 3¥0,93% 30% 309,0%% 390
B B! ¥ REEA ¥.35 BR,35R,¥5R 49,0595 %3 3,353, ¥5R 49,058,%%3
HATS G 9,4%%,%3%,599 9,%%¥,505, %39 9,500,005 39 9,%%¥,505, %39
IR FAreT AR ¥.3] 9%,9%:9,0%3 3?,953,04% 9%,9%:9,0%3 3%,957,04%
IR daed @9 ¥.%0 §,80% 330 90,035,343 §,80% 330 90,035,34%
AR B GBI 9,%0% 5% 4RY 9,85% 453 93¥ 9,890,43953¥ 9,55% 44R,43¥
IR G ¥. %9
qrg X ¥R Y Vg 039 ¥R 3% %9 ¥R Y Vg 039 ¥R 3% %9
@ AR (35,%93,59R) %,939,¥ 3 (35,%93,59R) %,939,¥ 3
TH Fafdydr HATH 9,9¥34%3988 9,9%,90%,0%9 9,9%%,03%,3% 1,9%%,90%,0%9
AET demie
Jepep! IR 9,9¥34%3 988 9,98%,0%,0%9 9,9%%,03%, 3% ,98%,0%,0%9
R fafaa e - - - -
T @R AT 9,9¥3 43958 9,9%%,90%,0%9 9,9%%,03%, 3% ,92%,90%,0%4
Uy IR IR
URYd Uiy SR ST 9¥.R¥ EERELY 9%.2% EERELY
SIgges Uiy IR S 9%.2% 3.3 9%.24 3.3}
Tl e gHl For ufiaeT guR
®fdeg qraTet FR G YT Ao JTolog URATIG Golell Siciiel 318916
a5 - faw o fa st R ST Ry u. Xfdog AseIOSRY
NEISED NEISED NEISED NEISED NEISED — .

fafay AR 2], 09¢
I : BISHIS], UG



oIuTeT dorete da fafdes | 39

B2upldbd 8l

b S BA kS 1ol bolh EATATY Dolh IS Dolh
’ DIp2IE 2310 PRIPD DI dhd)| 2UDAR IPWIE 2R DieYe WIED RIlo Dotpip Inirz 2913p 03
RISaleicl> Sop|2 A ‘R

Bhale bhbglle plokle hiEE blglie bbl Bhk bp| - mbk
DIPBIE WPIWIC Lolled DIRN Sojole MG lapie 0P WI2ID Sopjd

AbEBle LbbRIK Lok 112 1bblh| lhinle
223%0x ko bb ox k0 3bt'b 223%0x bbb oba by %b2'b Lpibalie DDAD| Lhin
fplbr Diefelf e
223%08 bbb or R0 3bEb 22308 bob'b oba bea b b 1BRARIE 1PbbIE bbb
Blthdlb |b|blmlle b Dap)
223%0r bbb or ka0 3be'b 223%0rteb'b oba bty hbx'b ellie DBID] Limin
@22 'bo%R2Y) 22%'280% @22 bo% 2L 22%'2k0'ke pibslie DDAD| hale lb@h AdRlie lbhb BR

1239 lplalie DDNG) helf (GIRAR Bhabh (0Dl eBIRQ DIBIOYD [pbpE (1
pibelie DBap| DB hule k@lh bl b lodAl loddrbibh bbbl Itk
Lelbalie PDp| DB Rete 1bdlle lodd|pbibh bbbl /Il

LlRblk[lhlk 1bhk DbAINR 1B2IbK Dlrk
925E Ly bl Lo 10AYl ldblpbibh Lbbinblk/lbll (2

@2 'bo%2) 2222800 ©22'bo%2k) ARE'2E0 %0 JIRENT N SV I > S WO E ST N I [ N TAR TV (NN
3bR'R3b% (222"%00'bR) 3br‘aabY (2x&%o0'b2)  oRle kb B lehr B@on Rk
(bbo'onazy) (233'08%%2) (bby'o%aty) (233'023%%) Llbll /il ®8[kp| 2lblkinlk ki@ bhllkalh

LiRb(k /Il 1ohk 2bk8iRok LR
(2 %0 Rbx'®) oxb'a23%th (2Rokbx'a) oxb'a=xth Llibll /Il bk 2lbLlre ldladdhe [Pbbl3 lohyle b&IRE bRk Akt

@2DE 1bhlrk loddlpb:bh 1k blbblb /it (@
|pibslie DBAD| hule |@@Jh Adblie
b%0'206 5% b'b 300 REO 2 2 b'b b%0'200 %% b'b 2 RERLD lhie |bhb Bk

(kb 7bor ZB 36 BJb 6bor Hok 3b) ek hood ‘2 2ikie B> 860 ‘b labli

102DD] |DYoIDLIIE PDIP| ROIE DDA



39 | oiuret doreme da feifdes

203" Re3'002'0h - 203 %:3002'0b Ant'adt'ab  2:9%ea'abr’b - 22b%'0b S RELRY bakaR W0 - 02%"2%0 bk binalp hule & 860t 2lklie
NOO'2RR LR R Q00 IRXLRR  (3z0%Ea'bh) R:2'ar0'23b A3 R %h ¥abkeo'h  o2tpo'ort 0259220 b' 2 RN
hete

(3b0"32b'bR) (3b032b'b¥%) (3b032b'b%) [INUN R HTN TN
- = (00302%20Y) 003K 20 blalta) ARy Bbip
- = lo2bp) Lalhle BlOlpRaRlE
- - ek pyInle Lok
Y002 AR 2R Y002 20 Soabar v ost'ootnor’t blaldnk| Melx
B B HERI LGl |pRAR LGABIRD Lulphols
- B B
- - bbata0sb  (0X3E3bEOR) FELEN 201 ¥obxaoh  o2two'osr hebd (NI Lbhld [8lin
- - lpieite bbb} o B
- = LiRblk/iole 328 10k 2lbbhilel Kbkt RIRE] (GLOIRE Ritkjo) Ikdk)
- B EIRblfllk [Ghi DIBSIJE [G3IY bl
(bbs'0%R22) (bbo'o%rzd)  (bby'oxa'te) LIRbIL bl ©S]lkb] Dlbluinle hie Djlkyjh
- = blRblk Il 1odk 21bkBIRk LR
(3t%'o%0"%) (3t%'o%0"%) (3t%o%0"%) LiBblL/llle bdly DlbLILe Lbladbhe [bbl3 byl LAIRE bRty Akg
lblelie DBIB| kel loDIb2h Mbhlle

b%0'200%5b'b b%0'200%5b'b b%0'200"%%b'b Ll
Lpielie pBag) (ope B

boypio'20ry - bodalo'20ry  :3tRobor  RooRx2ad'b 00% 2042 AakEaay babberwea’h - 000'bb2520% Divalk bhjlied :LR/DUslRIbR E0r ‘b lblls
RN LratEaesh  (Rt'avae) wavee’oebh - (00%¥ar%20%) JINNT SRS
250 - 522%EE'5E0%  EhaaRkey  bit'obo'od 00% 204 2AaRER2%y babbutwea’h - 003y 2%0'bbo'2 Dlbalk (GGl ¢6ot ‘b lablks

e
PbbjE Lan | il
2

bie LI bie ble LI bzt
e [t ] e e [ ] 8¢

Bl LRk InMRlR lboh
op

1k @ hbd

(tmbr 760t 2106 36 B> 6bor WM 3b) ek heor ‘2t 2ikle B 8ot ‘b lablik

102DD] (DIOPDYN IR IRPDDIS



oIuTet goreme e d fafdes | 33

Qlhk ‘[8lkold : bl
7b0& "¢ Abshll © i)

Al D21 2310 loipd DI dnd| 2UDXR IPIDIIE SR DIp2Ye wIeD Rilo botble IniR 2HI12p o3
Qusaleicn> Sopp> 2 Ry

Bhate Dibpglie Rlokle Rk bbglie bbl BbK bp| - mbk
DIp2IE PIWIC Lolled DIR Sojoe oIE lapie HoP WI2ID Sopjd

pibie LbbUJ Loh B2 G bislle
ostar¥aEe'bh - oREar%aEabh  w0aAbbAy :EAEIR'BRY - 22b%ebab okr'a2akEr 305'R2%K3 ALRaexRb:E - Rk bhk220' bBlhalp huie (& hood 2lhiie
AOREPE - AORERR 1Y bk (Y5bobatar) - otr'a22 %t epr's0'b  KRODOS29E: - 32202 32 blbhip Lo
Rale
(33b'22%%00) (33b'223%0%) (a3basitor) [N NI
(032"t % 329) [FERIRLE blalta) A3 Bbib
lodbp) Lalhle BlOlpRrRLE
Aok DyiRle lor
39t'0002 39t'0002 32t'00n's bialdnk ARy
AORLL LBl |pRARR LGABIRD Lnlpbols
(200'00%'2) (200'00%2) (200'00%'2) o) 0AQ|Ibk] DIbRIG [Skin
na2'0xb’bh  (baA'bR'90R) - - okx'a28' ket eor%R0'b  Kho'no2'ar: hebd (NI Lbhld [8lin
Lpialle pBab) (oo B
BiRble /il 325 Ibhk 2lbbhilpl Kk RIRE] IGOIRR Rhio) Jkdk)
LIRblfllk [Ghiy DIBSIIR [G3IDY bl
(233032 (23yor3%E) (2303t LIRbIL bl ©B]lkbl Dlblbinle hie DRjlkyjh
= RIRblk /il 1odk 2bk8ipof LA
2bb203 %y tbb203%y 2bb'203 %y LIRbIE [l Lbdiy Dlblpllrd Lbladdhes [PbIS 1bifle LEIROR 1Bk abtr
- - \plalie DBID| hule loDib2h Mbklle
302 Reo'2b'b 302 Ko’ xbb 30e R0’ 2b'b Llk
Lpielte pBap) (opp B
204 %3000k - 203 Rey'002'0b AAE'R3t'2b  2e2tea'aba’h - 22bRe%0b Wh0HEYRE ba¥eiRK20Y - 02%'2%0"5h'n Diball bl :LA/DUsIRIkR 860t b labll

JINNT SR NEIA:S

204 R:3'002'0b - 203 %:3002'0b Ant'Adt'ab  29%ea'abr’b - 22b%'0b S RELRY bakIA M0 - 09%'2%0" bk bibalh [OIR 860t ‘b labli

i | Lok
(phofS Ll IEH!E?E& l..E
bil) Lokl lodklk ook

1k @ hbA



38 | ouTet dareTa 3o fafdes

203 %e3'002'b - 203%Re2002'0b BREAB2L  2:2%09Rba'b - 22bReSab - SEREY' Y bRADAR W0 - 02%2%0'5bk D Diboll huie I 8602 2lblie

NO0'ARKLLRR = QO0'2XRLLRA  (at0'sta'bb)  A2oRr023b - FELSIS [ Kobeao'b  oatwo'orr - 025922%0b'% Bibhie lisin
hele

(3b532b'bR) (3bn32b'br) (3bn32b'br) LIOR alkio bk
- = (0039A%2AY) 0030 KR0S Ll ARl Rbip
- - lndbp) L2l BlOlpRARR
- - b by el
00K AR 00RO Sobrrwar o2t'oot'nor’t Ll ARl
- - ALl IPhR PR PAERY il
B - N (BRIl DIPRIP 1911
- - bba'i0ab  (oWaEabter) FELEY 01 Yobao'h  o2tpo'osk bbb IDANIR Lhhld 18]n
- - Lo bap) log B
B - Elble /il (328 1Ghk Dlbkikfp] R bIY) IGkOLRR Rikle) 122
- - EiRble /1l bk DIbSINS [&2IK bl
(bbs'o%nty) (bbo'o%t)  (bbb'owa'td) LIRble /il G8)lbb| Dlblbiolp ko Dhllkajh
- - LBblb ihlls bk, 2lbbBIRE (LR
(3t %'0%0"%) (3X'0%0" %) (3X'0%0"%) LlRblL il Lo Dbl Ibldbhe PbbIS ohalle LEIE 1Ay Aok
Lalalie DBM] pule 1oDlbah MbkIe

b%0'200 %% b'b b50'200"%5b'b b50'200"%5b'b Lalle
lpialie B g b

boy¥aio'20ey - boze0'=20rs  httobor  Ro0%r2%arh oo¥%2eR: - AaRER2EY bibbuereath - 000'bb: %20 Dibnlp it kh[bUsiplER $602 ‘b labll
¥t 23h %6 k0 23b (bez'aha'or) toxkEna0b’b (003027 20%) JINNTSRY/RINTCAHEN
S29EEE 50" %29%EE 520 EarRe:  bit'ob0':y o0RAE - AaREEY babbutReah - 003'2%5'bbo'R bibalp [0l E60t ‘b lbli

feled bl bl hie hle hie bkl
o [ ] [ ot ot s o e [ 2
M

Dy} [olbRAE NI Lo

bR

b @ kb

(tmbr 760t 2106 36 B> 6bor WM 3b) ek heor ‘2t 2ikle B 8ot ‘b lablik

1a2Dp) |DIoPDYN |Dale LL|PDDIS DDA



oIuTeT doreTe e do fafdes | 3Y

@lhls ‘|Slbold : blled
2bot "d& Mbshpll ¢ Rl

BRa2:010) £2lk
DIPUE 230 PRIPD DI MY 2UDRR IPIE AR DIP2YP 101eD R0 otpip Iniz 2DI2P Bos
[RISalelcr? Hopp2 A 'Ry
Brate Dbglie plokle nbkk phpglie kbl BhkK ppl - BhK
DIp24E OIDIC Loued DIRA Hojple oG lanie 50 RI21> Sopjd
blle LhbRIK Lok B2 bRl bilie

otxoboea’bh - otxaobora’bb  oabbiay :rWb:o'bry - 22b¥ebab oE:A2AMEE A5%R9%KY ALAAN:ANYE - A% 2202 Dibajp huip I hAor 2lblie
PISYETR 13 - IS YETR 1Y Rbra%e  (borrr2tes) - - otr'a2a % eor%r0h  RROBO2'2R: - 32202k %h2 Bbble Il
hele

(a3b'asen) (33b'aR2EeR) (a3b'ar2ten) LIk LRIk bl
(0325t % 42) 032°%8 k32 Llaldab| ARl Bblp

lodbb) 3l BlOlRMeI:

B Lok Dylnlle lanl
39t'00n% 39t '0001% 39t'0002 Llaldab) ARl
ADRLL (Bl [pRARR IGDEIERY 1kRbbE

(20060:2) (200'00:2) (200'00:"2) By DAQ|Ibk Dibhl 1Blpin
a22'0%'bh  (bas'bieer) - - okx'a2a % eer'%20'b  KRODO2'2R: b 1GHNIR Lkhld 19ln

Lpiadie bBap) e b

BIRble llk (328 1Ghk Dlbkhp] R bIY) I0kOLRR biskle) (22

B - Elkblp il 2K bl IGhk Lrind
(23308%EY) (2330a3EY)  (=3oRyEy) Lol il ©8)lib| Dlblbinlp ki
- = Lblb ihlle bk, 2ibkBIRG LA
Eby" 303K S TN CS =TS LIBb bl (3 Dlb (0 Iblabhe [bbfS ke bAIE 1ok, M
Lelelie DBAD] hule Lbblbah Mbhblie

BEERERLD bR BbEYRERLD JETS
lplaalie bBD) b B

203 Re¥002'0h - 203 Rey'002'0b Ar'A3ab 222%02'abr’h - 22bResab - SRELAY ba¥enr %0 - 02%'2%0'5hx Dlbnle bl khblallelbk 8608 ‘b lablks
JINNISYR:Y/RITTHTHES

203%3'00 203%R:3002'0b FRERM2L  222%02'2ba’h - 22bReS0b - SARES'RE baXRBA R0 - 02%"2%0" bk Dibolp 1l 860k ‘b lobli

- IEEEHI.IIE
By Lblphalla lodhl lbdh

1k @ hdd



3§ | oureT dareTee dd faifdes

efdbdhd ololG Udrg fdazor

#TGUT 9, o6 IR MIE 3R, w6y T (& FOI§ 190 IRT 9§ FOIE w9¢ =)

YpH O H

- w
A _
PRIAR HATGEIE WS Ja18
ISR ¥ 935,09, 9% 3,%29,3UR %40 Y 935,09%,99%  3¥%9 4R340
Yob TAT A R 23Y,TRY, LEL 353 REY SYE QLTI UEL  RTHREYIYE
ST T - - - _
BRIAR AATHTEIE I 333,395,295 923,240,358 |WER9 12340359
AT hTT (3,433,953 5¥) (R,0:,9¥¥953)  (3XIZUSREYY) (3,039,9¥¥45Y)
BT o Yeb Yol (3§,2%0,4¥5) (3¥,5%932) (35,2%0,4%5)  (3¥,5R92%Y)
HHAN G (BR¥ 5% QYY) (R4R,034,359) (@R¥ 35 ¥ YY) (593,034,359
3T @ d (335,%3%,905) (39%,934,30%) (335,3494%5)  (39%934,30%)
T TR ¥ SRS IRadT e Gared e WaTE 9,540,%3%, ¥%9 9,59 0% ¥, 80y, 9,349,059,49%1  9,59%,04,96%
e Wl arg R Te/(93)
IS M dBATe dicbl XHHAT T/ (d3) 3,055,539,349 (3390,343,2%0) ,055,539349  (3990,343,%\90)
3 a1 g ARTERH1 XEd! Hivard uef(9e) 9,933, ¥R 9903 (4,430,00% 33) 9933,¥29903  (3,4R0,003,3%3)
3 ARG FURMHE Te/(98) ¥,03R,R.0% (219,335,%35) ¥0RQ0L  (29335,535)
I o R wRemEwers R3ua $ofl qor | ue/(de) (83%%%,0%9) 9%9,¥3459 (B358%,0%9)  q¥¥]3%9
Edors Q3T Foll qa queH oe/(T3) (¥,5%%,535,940) (X,08%,3%0,2%0)  (¥,5%%,535,040) (¥,09% R50,R%0)
I R we/ (@) (¥K9T5E UY) (139,954,539) (YR8 5% LX) (939,95%,%39)
(R959,53%,5H)  (5,9%0,¥R52¥%)  (R95%,53%,5M) (5,920,353 ¥%)
HAod Wl Arg Qe (BE)[9%
I qn facig Svemewer Ry o df@l ImH (9e)/9% (494,40,000) 49Y,94,0,000 (49%,84,0,000) ¥9¥,8%,0,000
TU® T dHers [7F u dfel XGHE (92)/T8 (9%¥ R2%,34%) O¥EIELRLS  (G¥YRRYUY)  ],0¥5 554 40
aEDD! ETH (9e)/98 ¥ 423§ ¥OURE 3,235, 683,943 ¥IRREYOURE 3,235,083 943
Ul HUSHT (9<)/d% - - - -
3= g (ue)/9e 435,09%,0%\9 (53,94Y) 439,250,599 (53,944)
3,¥%0 845,315 Y ¥R5 R0Y SHY 3 ¥ROMGY,055 ¥ ¥%5,R9Y SUY
IR MR e TRffEre gg T yaw 3,33%,¥30,R %% Q19 ¥UONIE)  RR3],535,53¢ (4,599, %4849
SRR 1A (404,290,345) (434, ¥49,94%) (40%,290,395)  (434,%¥49,94%)
Hared TfifEe g8 TR vaE 3,¥33,4R0,63% (3943205 5%9) YRRRGI0%  (RYUR,405 589)
B PRIARAT TS JdT8
&I @Re (R%¥,9%% 9%%) (1,539, %3%,230) (RE%,9%2,9%%)  (q,5%9,¥3,330)
IRIREED - _ _
Rer wwafr @Re (LY ,%¥9,339) (199,5¥ 4%%) RUYEYE,330)  (99,5%Y 455
Rer FwaRm! fa! Y5 ¥,5%9 935,24 6s¥, %9 935,34
sd e @Re (R¥,390,4%0) (4,333, 3R9) (¥,340,440) (4,333,339)
B FHRTe! ERE - - _ -
BTG Aeafien! fazor %,093,000 9,995,539 2,093,000 9,995,539
TS YT 335,490, 433 993,235 4 ¥% RITU0MRT 993235,4¥Q
B YT %,295,0%3 3,3¥%993 %,295,0%3 3,3¥%943
S BRARAT G& & JaTE (R55,¥9% 445) (1,530,043 44%)  (R55,¥9¥445) (1,530,033 44%)




faa=or

fofir 9 PRAREE e Y4
E e RS ANEEIC ]

FHOTIAD] YhTH

oIuTet dorete e d fafdes | 30

FREUH] RG] STRITD] (pIR=ae ure

FRETUMT RIRIYDT STRTDT YHIT

IR FspreEEe U 303,900 35% 3,Y9R Y ¥R 0%, 90035%  3,¥9I YUY 0

BT ﬂjﬂﬂ?ﬁ (RO TYY 9%%) (%9,95%,%9%) (ROIT¥Y 9%%) (19,95%,99%)

Tt YT

3T UTf /B

i ¥d sREReE g3 T (90,2 ¥3,850) 3,¥39, 34,353 (R90,R¥3950) 3 ¥39,344,33

& TA TG GHAMAT YD ge He[ds Q,5%%,490 %5 (159,%%¥%,5%0) q,5%%,490,3%5 (1%9,5¥%,5%0)

TR AT TG FAMD GHARI Aloard 1,539,335, ¥%3 3,3 UG IRY 9,539335,%¥%3  JIRY UG IRY

TG T e FHFE AT SRET HUS! tRbde rT/Ed ¥ 929900 ¥ 355 %% ¥,928,9009 ¥ 365,538

TIE qAT TS FEST AfH s 3,804 %%%,535 9,539,335, ¥%3 3,904 284,535 4,539335,%%3
amerT fafder g Wor ufideT eguR

®fdos areTe IR oG {uTT A FAoleG URATG GoTTell SICTIcT 316916

yg9 - faq ygQ o erfdemd U9 FRIGR 31fded e fr. v < q

. ATHER
$0G GBIGR ATUT 006G ol GIleT FAlGHG AE NCTH IRAR ~ fGUD BB~ DTG o6 IEAG S
TS THSTH

fafa AR R, 209¢
I : BIGHTS], UG



3C | oiuTet doretia 3o fafdes

a2r‘on ta2'h 203 ar et 20% %00 SRE 2 o2t ‘onrte2'b YL RN RS 20% %00 SR Lhalo

lkdbko BEJUS kIR
a2r'ontte2'b 0% kax el 20% FeR SR ® a2k'oak e 2'b S0 kax %t 20% %00 SR & Dibolh |bhildk RIDR LD bbb abb|

bloolp blrpplisalh R leb b Japbh

&b 2hi

b & ha) Bibolk |ddk k@3 RIBE| lkD Gk 'R

| 8 D32 ofB36'8L6'02¢'60) & Bibalps Lo [hdlRlle [dbladbp| |dbl mﬁm Qb XNId Plhps
a%z'oba'232% aratib=ny e 230 baeb0%2% N FNCIELER Y o E2% 20%'2 20baebo%2s Limlo
- - - - - - hod blpbb (4l bQ| leb high| kule [dbdk lhdb Jld Glhb
- - - - - - EhiPR) ehyl by Blpbele Ibigub [gebfikh
ok ok 222 gwx\mw%ug%u war»uwﬁoyu;w a%r‘obe 232" axxEab 2% 2 26 batb0o%2% blbalp bbb b2 Lhdk Xy Olhk

H :

I & ke Dbk phEQ) D Dibolr 132 lhok X Glhk &R

| & b2 ££880'HON0EYL & Dibolk Lheln IbdlRle lbladbbl lbdl 2R Qledb RINE| IRD bb
2e3B2%R%E VRIS EN 282 %%% hoe ' PREERE) PR Bag‘2rrara’h 282%%% hoa 't Lhsio
- - - - Rate
- - - - - - by LS DK IblbbD hole IRD Lk
0%0'23%'220' toaaen 0%k 2bt'bor &Ry 'b 0%0'23%'220' 106000 0 Rk 2bt'bor ' ry'b bibalp 1432 IbledR RIRD| lD b
ok 2byvot'h Wy%ox»;wuw.r »w%xyo.wxs‘r o' 2bywor'b ERSNeY PRI PR FRHRR N Dlbolh bk

H :

bibk bbb IlD bbb bR

b @ kb

22DYi0 RYYDER 102DPJ RIPD



aIuTet doreTie 3o faifdes | 3Q

EI RN sEn otk

aEy'atray xEa oty LohBR M RlRS

lehrylr Llra

23’280y ISR 28328 a% ISR N3Y lhelo
hale

28328y e RO tS 28328 a % ISR IR 2RI

Sub lbledh Dl DInlind |abby
khlndke lbbp Sy Olhl
khlotk lbaldrh Olhl

Ragtid

b @2Rjhiis @il haif % s
| @ 1ohall thie 2k Q3DRID 1D Rk bloddhe RIRE k2ALAS WIALA Ikladbb Iblsdbie kIR | @bl LIRhS le [bhinlph i3 Ll @ob G3bSIA DRIG Ik

2000 ke PAERLINNS 00020202 2002 0% R PAERPTRNS 000'202'0 Lhalo

2000 ke AERLINNS 000'202'0% 2002 0% R PAERPTRNS 000'202'0t Rate

[Blgntr Rhblp] hifjie
hiby 158

hibd Abinjko

Dy} lebhilble hRYIs

Rale

[Blgubr Riblb] hifjie
hibx 158

hibd ablnlke
IR SNITAT:Y

Q@3Indbha RIBD| hRALAS 2R




80 | ourer doreiae do feifdes

26 b'bba‘bb 300'boxth SEb R ED =0 b'bba‘bb 3000k th EbRRSEb bBibolk |bhule 2lklie

LErghte

1oy /iphie

bey'axas 2:2%22% 22baze beaar2"k 282'%22 22b'ase limin |bhb Bl

© ledbko BRJUS bhb Bk

[SZEER =6b'bba'bb 300'box b SR EER] =6 b'bbe bb 300'box &b Blbalp & b lablks
T R S -

b & bad lkdbke BRI [I8k 3]

220302 '5%b'b %220t Ak 23k 09t 220308 5%b'b w220t 3be‘23% ‘02t b T

(e b'bba'bb) (300'boxth) (%EbRR%Eb) (e b'bba'bb) (200'boxtb) (2Eb RS ED) lledbko biRlln @ LalDhR

kate

ahrabbbabhb bx‘ooboxt'h KRR %L sheabbbabh bx'oobioxt'h FR2EbR %D o 1bhEY| Bloleak bbiEe

Cllerir Rk L @b {lapbh

I

RhIR kD Yod 16h3) SOl hipb) b ok 3’2

1k @ hdd

- - ory'aeray bbb2Eb2ob e Rox 'ty aEbee%’orh JI-31Y
- - 0% ‘01b'bb abo'asyob JOERI TR PER SN QR lphit Bedphd MebH)
- - 022% 2 %" PRED RO 03%'2b% 02%"%28"% Q] ek Bodlpmd opboloR
- - oob’r20'%b 2 Eabb 00t %8'bb oox‘x20'ab Q] lphate Rodlpd @kin [laby]D
- - 002t ba‘or EFER P NN 2% bro'te SRR Q) |k Redlea3 hBIQ Qblak
- - 026t 2%'2b LRI ERYY 226925 3b ¥o0t0% 2h Q| (@lht) B} Ble @h
- - ELER VTR ShRGR22 ot tey'e 30 Q) it dblh [BEI2 L]
- - ra%E b 2b0"52 %' 2b 3008 % bb RS PI1N Q] lphed BedpmE ¢316 Olhk
[ o ]

I L I X N -

Bldbln [ebobd Dk djlhike hule bk R

b @ kb



oIuTeT doreTe? da fafdes | 89

thy‘onx 2z a’bt Eora%bRre 06%'0% R ERG bA tha'onx et a'bt Eora%bRra 2t 060%'0% %2R0 b lnin @b
30b"5 22 %N 222'0%8t0b atb'oxbabb 20b" SRR RR 222'0%8t0b atb'oababb bl Pl Q|
a0k br2'naa bt 322%0 basht e2'0RaDa’ba a0% br2'nea bt 322%0 bada %20 'DEA'bR Lislos
bobao='=8 %' ax2%2 k%0t 2% bt bt 'R bobhoa'at R ax22a % W0t 258 3be'bat'a fate
by ‘zba‘or 332226 'bo¥ CISEANEY by baora 3222 26 'bo% 28k ‘a2t bey o [Mehd
Sbaa%2 ba 29 bR WA b aaR e Sbaa% 2 hba EELRt PR3 bz 2 an e by Wb
300328 R0k Sat%2% 2tk RabAE S Bee 300128 2k Sat %2k 2tk %abBes ke lind BIOLb behp)
o%:'%ar‘oro’t 000'000 2% 000'060%9 b 0%t hat‘oxo’t 000'000%2%'8 000'06093bs lind loph ARI3
000'0%2‘t0% 000'0% %' 2%k 0000822k 000'0% R 000'0% %' 25k 000'02252% o Soue binjlh
000030\ 2 5%t 000'02k'nba 000‘0t R '0b" 0000302 % k't 000'02x'nba"t 000'0 2 ‘0b3% o 2 @ky

000‘02%n0bt
000220 b
ooo‘oba3'b
00002802 %" %
000'0Eb'R %%

000'okb' AR
000'030'0b2 "
000'02%'b%%'b
EDIE SR 140

ooo'ortDER' R

I

b @ kb

00002 K2ea'E
0000 RKEOLS
000'0r2'be b
222922 2R D

00003 R RERS

000‘02%n0b%
0002226 b"
000'0b2"220\b
000'022'02% %
000'0Eb'R%%'E

000'0Eb' AR
000'030'0b2"
000°02%'b%%'b
2602 'R SR RS

ooo‘ortDEh’a

00002 K20t

oy felpjlolie bLdjte
ok Uoh Blb kele LD Lk

U Dl /203 205

000‘0¥% ¥k EObR
000'022'bx b
222932t RS
00002 % 222" o oigiblie
Meh Yod

labb}

lnkQ@2b] LRI D Yok Ikdlklle [GAbK lod bR

2038 %2 bk bt R REE 20bE L0t k20208 303 R2'box bt SRS RE 20 bAE 2RO TR 2620 Lhsio

Phlk leb lod lbhpjle L8IRE 1k TdIAL
2038 R2'bok bt SR REE 20bE LR e k202’0 303 R2'bor bt SRY RE 20 b%E 2RO TR 2620 o B
(3% Rebort) (FeVR 20 3b2) (RE0E2% %0 %) (3R% RebarE) (R 20 3bk) (RE022% %0 %) ledbko hElIn Db
(bRO'bat ' 5b) (0305 bx'0%E) (x2b'220"%22) (bRo'bax'%b) (030 % bx 'O %) (2b'r20"%aY) llzdbho ke b3kl
©00nba ba¥%) (REE"S %% 3% (5bx'030%22) (@00'aba‘bak) CREE"S %% 23%) (‘2b2'920%22) ledbke BBl : EAIDR
thy'oar tea'be PRI YD TR 0% 0%k ERa b thy'onxtea'be ERY RN R ba'% 0% hERe ba RhIR > Lo [bdylle kARG 1kkofk DRohte

=% |/ & |

b @ kb

[Rhik llsb [Ind |bhd| BOG2IE o)




o

tba‘onx et a'be Eora%bRra k0% 0%k ERe b tha‘onx et a’bt Eora%bRae 2t b0 0% R ERS bR lsls @&
(RRb A2 20b) (re2‘n2b'ob2) (22 REaEORe) (FRb RS 20b) (rexD2b'ob2) (22 RE3e‘ONR:) lbdylebs blR3h Inlks Lkiplballe
o260 ker‘obo e 23R bat RRY FORRALESY bR o360 Fer‘obo'e 23 %' bot Ry FORRARS TS bR Lslo
- - - - - : TSR
o3 REx'oboxt 23%'bat RRY 2 HOR AR ELS bR o260 Fer'obo'xt 23 %' bor RRY FOR AR EYY b Lhslo
batby'oxa 132226 'bO¥ SEe‘RaE bl by tby'oxa 132226 bo% bEeRat bl g kete
EbrE5bo%h 232’2000 2022950kt ISR YNCINY ¥22'200%0% 2082930kt Bhlblo DLk
- - = - - = Dhalhin Mpldb
- - - - B B bRy LbkhbR plbakh
oax'2ra'al o ath 2%k 293208 oxx'2xa'ay reyea b 2%k 493208 1R} lbhizk) ek
0oo'orbt: - - 000'oxbE: - - bR} lbkhinlid blkk|
- - = - - = Bhlbin lhhdp bblph Rylabaie
000'00t'b% 000'00t'b% 000'00t'b% 000'00t'bY 000'008‘bY% 000'00t'b% bbbl (MM
226%0" %% bro'rer'2b %abate v 2262%0' %% b%0'2ek 2 %abte K Dblbin |bledh RIRE| LD G abbd
2%b3RS 23 Sbr'200 0 O%%'226%38 2%bRY 232 bh'200 %0 OR%' 226238 ple » LR
robribra’or 20t bR bRR AR %320'b%E E3b'ox tobibrra’or 20t bR bRRRE %20'b%ER3b'ox Rimb ohle/wk

JITCINES

ki

o« ./ & | :

b @ kb

lok@2b| LbIPhlb lkD Und bRl bl ) £63

thaoa kbt

RIS SRt

%0 RER bR

tha‘onx et a’bt

LIS TR

%o R bR

tha‘onx et a’be

eR

b @ kb

RIS SRt

0t 203 %

233'2b% 206 b

tha'onx et a’bt

=%/ & |

RTINS TR

S0t 2% R

2332 b% 206 b

Llek b3l
bR Inihlin

suflh L2g 26
208 Laylbie
LTI
Ieha Plhk

lok@ab| LbPhIb lkkD sk lkdlklie lbisk 6]



aIuTet doreiia 3o foifdes | 83

600abR bRk

REE DR AR

bt 020 K22

600aba bk

wEE SRS AR

b 020 K32

lleablo BEMUS bl

bro'be R %b

bro‘be R %b

03 b b 0%t

0622 % KRb

bro'bue R %b

22b'220 %28

(PR REL RY)

0% 5 ht 0%t

bro'boe R %h

bro‘bee R %b

030 5ht 0%t

206 22% %hb

bro'bae ‘R %h

22b'220 %2

(ReVR BEbRR)

030 o bt '0RE

Dinaly lbb:lbk 2lhle
bISBADS hule

2b[2h Ibab Rikjp) Iblsh k)
(Ibdy)/emyin (@hb Bk

lledbhe bgllin [bhb bl
bivaly 1k b lablk

lledbko RIS ®BIR

2% Rebor

YR BEO 2be

%2025 %0k

2%y RebaRE

YOk o0 2b

%20E2% %60k

Dibnlp lbbalbk 2lklie

A% RebaRE

e e

b @ kb

(bot 3=t ‘ot b)

3RS REboRE

o3tk Eat

POVRSORAS

AR% RebaRE

foe ulbb DIkl E hooe Lulbbk 2lklie

(bat32t'oth)

RS RebaRE

032 ‘EakEat

POVRSLRA

blPh DA Rafe
2b[2h kb Rhijb lbIsk abh

ay/iphie 1ope b
lledbko BRI limin lbRD bk
bl ke loge B
Bibalk 1@ b lablks

lmbie Lo LehRINS bl

lledblo [llo |dbhBRIS ]6'8




88 | oluTet dareTa 3o fafdes

bRRbE2 B Rb SRR 2L Db SbaEba'saa bERbER S Rb SRR E2E Db baEb2"%2 Lhalo

oob3i0'0r 0002 %2"be 0002k 2 oob3i0'0x 0002 %2 be 0002 a2 2Rl Lbdyleb pibiph
bra b %kh ShR'0%020b b b bar bERR3b LD $%R'0%0 20 ba ' bar bar 2kl bRk

@3Indbhe [Pbb|E

=% | &

I @ ko Lo bbb 1ohple LAIME kBl ARty Lh LbldQUD lblkimle DDA ke &78
%R 206 22K 0265 ba 202 2 obx2b% A% 'R ¥R 206 2R 026 5ba 2022 obx‘2b% 3% 2 TS0
| - - - ldblo BEJUS LIk

boo'ox boo‘rox boo‘rox Loo‘rox boo'sox boo'rox Rate
000'0%E 203 - 000'0%E 203 - @2ndbhe high| lbkdb Kid Olh

000'000'0n\2 - - 000'000'06\2 - - khln¥e |bdp Kl Olhk
222 b2y %0EA%0R%'b whEREoD % B babasy %e0E2 0% 'b %t REOD % @b [pa3 [Mbrb
b5 2285 ko200 222 2522600 %% % % bob'29t%Y 2ba2o0'222'b 2%2200%%% Ehlae [Mdrb
khln#

I T . S

1 o b Blhe bpyBbl iyl LAIRE Ikkof (PSzOJowy) DREah b78
302%00'220 %5b20b'20%'” o8 % btk 130'R 302%00'2260\: %%b20b'20% 8 CERNIIEEOPY Lbslo
bREbER SR SRR 22 Db Shabaeaa bERbER S BB SRR L2 D% ShaEbaeaa Ll [bhle 1bipbb|3 lbdyjle &I 1k DOLA]
¥R 200 AR 026 b8 208 % ob:'2bkra%e 'R FReR00 ABRY: 028 5k 208 'R obt'2brA%e 'R 1@ lbkhipg) lohyjle RBIRSE IhRok Dijlaajh

o ./ & | -~
b @ kb

bllee LhhlPR) 2°



oIuTet doreTia 3o feifdes | 8Y

bRRbEE S %D 225 TR’ bb 2% 22t %h 20% %be kb 020tb2'%38 002025 TS9N

000%30'0% ooYaiy'or 0002 %2 be 000%%2"bx 0002222 000t a2 Llr0 DRI in
- - 000'ot:'h ooo'ot:'h 0000222 000'02:'2 sub Byl Lok
- 000'000% - - - - Q@ 2bhoks Blyjais login
- 003 %04’ - - - - Q| Bblkth QRID S2h hbp| BlR33
000'000%b 000000 kb 000'000'%b 000'000"%b 000'000%b 000'000 kb Q) @ bRMY Debh bb|BhEE Olhl
000"% 000"% 000"% 000"% 000'% 000'% Q] kukibh 0D Olhp
000'00%'b o0oo'oox'b 000'00%'b 0oo'oox'b 000'00%'b 000'00%'b @) pBaoyis Blp oblak
o0oo'akt'b oooa¥'b ooo'akrt'b oooa¥'b 000'a ‘b oooa¥E'b Q] Ab bREMwE 29
000'00%": 000'00%% 000'00%": 000'00%% 000'00%: 000'00%: @ RoI3 Sxkop| @lhk
2t 'a%R%0Y o2t3br'nx 220'2:b'00b o023ze0'n% PRI obb'o%2'brb suth @iehRe DhIRR Ik
- - - - 000'0%b% 000'000‘0h Sath Rl LRIRJD RBlekd
- - - - 000‘02%"% 000‘000‘0h suth @iehRe Lok
- - - - baabre 00001 Suth [PbbIE RIBR|
- - - - 000 R/ % 000'000'R% Sath [PbbIB bl
- - oxbaar e orbaak b %b2'oviEr orb Rk Bt Suth [PbpIS BB
- - oao‘2ek‘ob oa0‘2et'0b ZTE TR DY oa0‘2et‘0b Suth DK @Ab|BliekY
- - %R ERREb obx"sby'xb 2bo‘2kk2h obx'5ba%b suth @lebRe SBI3I2 plhAkd
- - 020 %3 ‘bb 020 %32 ‘bb SeE‘a0b’bb 020 %1% bb Suth |PbbiE bk
K2%'Rot'2r oty 2Eate yR2tabRe oty 2iate 026‘tba'ox ot 2Ea‘te b- lkinle beeBh kd3le wblo:
o2bkea'th onR'tEr‘ob EEES LR onr'tEr‘ob 6% 2% 0b onR‘EEr‘ob Suth Bibsh Odb|Bliekd
208008 '2h 02%%20'%th 000'0%: 000‘00% 000'bex 000‘00% sath @lebRe plbibd
%bitby'2g 23% %300 3b 22500 22 RREER 322°2%2%0k %5226 2bb Lo phiph s
Z - - - 000‘o2}'b 2%0'bab% Q) 2blhISSI2 Bl Labll
- - - - 000'22t 2%ERRR Wy 2PIRIBES Sl Lkl
- - - - 0RK220"% BEACLER] Q) B3 RIBR|
- - - - ba' bbb 39 S Q) @ Redlerd b
B - - - 002"508bb or2'5 ke th QY e 2blh @pB
- - - - oXa‘bba'zh a2%%ax2b Q) P 2:khoks Bolkg)
_ _ - - ORGSR Sy Q) b 2abhohS Rulb3lhldkslh 2
- - %92 5bb 00% % 00636 00% 5 Q) 2blh (@bl lawe
ook’ ook’ 02b%% ook’ 0R3'%: ook’ Q) I RIRP| Belb3lh 1Bk b
®beR3b'on 00k h2%'bb STREF RN oot'brs %boB22% oot 'bais D Rlbb] kb IRl PBHIn
000e3b% 23t %%h 0o 'or% 23 %%h 000'00%': K395 Q) @lhl QLR
000'bE ¥R 000'b2 %2 000'bE ¥R 000'b2¥% 2 000'bE ¥R 000'bE % R (eBbH) Q) dpely 22bhoOhS helbBlthldedlh @a&
000'00% 000'00% 000'00%% 000'00%s 000'00% 000'00%s (ePbK) Q] b Bldb| lalglh Alhk
000'0%x‘2b 000'0%e‘2b 000'00k bk 0000 RE 000‘0bbbat 000'00% ‘b (e2bK) Q) lphih Bedlpied @ibin Shd3le

T T Y N Y "

I @ hoy Rlbblo [Rabsh |bIke |bajle LhIPbbIE £'2°2




8& | oruret dorcTia e fafdes

b @ ks Ll [blbhih GRIR lbdk DblR bobR
000000002 Rok |pibdp) bE

ledble BEJIS kAR

000'000'00% (el [hslo

000'000'00% Pl bbbt GRIBR lbikk bblph
- 1l bbb bRI3R bk

I @ b Llred k|t DRIBR Ob'R

wER b2, - - %ERbr2k - - JIS1Y

G3R|ID A |hed3kb Dl

%ea b2y - - ¥ea b2y - - BXR|Ib> Mbplie lbhb Ble

20b%E%2'%8 22%'920'by - 20bE%2"% 2 228920'b2 Limlo
- Rjbebr 2 [bua3hb Dlr
20b%E%2"%2 22t'920'bs - 20bE%2"%R 22:'920'bs ek 3 Rl lbhb Ble

| & (20l QWi ko) O Moble bigle bR bbh kil 7hot ki Mbhle Qb lkihi b Bl
I @ kbd Rib 2 Blb R



NCI ¥ Ba! 3faad) 39% (%)
Jq qEBT ATl AR dShiS

3 agd NCI H7 g dfRd dioard
NCI @18 Ry e

%992 GABA TAUDI TG BT RGB! S

_

oIuTet dorete e d fafdes | 8©

YpH B Hl

Lk

3MYIe HAT 008

Al

3

MYl HAT 00

3 | e e 2osy |

3MYIEe HHAT 00

E
:

E |
£
" |
E
E |
£
g,
F
E |
£
" |
E
E |
£
" |
E
E |
£
E,
:
E |
£
" |
E

g

3MYIe HAT 00!




8T | oluTet dareta 3o fafdes

| & lbar $2h28b'ee @ RO lbbbl » SEE'873'03 @ RoR lbllnin fak HHY'67'67 @ Lymb Solb A lhein lb hfor Lelbk 2lhle | 8Rh bbh 3 Leln gD leln [bhy|lek

b} 2D 1Rl DK lhha [bbieh S¢lb M IbBR | & lbhylr blkb lhdhly| bk ket Db dp AR e 1blgep] IeD bbte > leeln 1b lreln 1bAMLE loddlpb LhdbRly] lodbhe 3 Rk
200'0bAa: tro'2%bEe JAEEEIE] 200'0bRa: rro'2%bie A EELE! JIESTE
- - = hed By

lfedblo bbylin Dlajkr

B2 B bijp

lodbelblish [binlRIb

2B/his lbhb B

Dibolp b b lablk

LR [Llre Jbd|le bAIRE 1bbLIG

200'0bkaE Fro'2%bEl PR EEIE] 200'0bka: rro'2%bil IR ERENE! had bE

lodbelbiigh [bio|flb by

(262'b2t'by) (boa'23b%b) 00%'RRA'2 (262'b2t'by) (box'22b"b) 00%'2a&'2 blobb b |nfol Akt lbhb bR
(brE"2%%y) ox22%h2'bb IR EINY] (brE"32%%y) oxie%2'bb PRIV 2B/hle lbhb Bk
Lraenr b 200'0b¥e: gro'2% bt Lo 0eR b 200'0b¥o: gro2% bt bibalp | b labllg

Qi o 1oy bBiofh 1ok 2o

[TRTIETRI A S )

1BDIRDIK Byflbd Rlbblo |92 (khidh Bbeh Ibbk &'bh'R



aIuTet doreTie 3o faifdes | 8Q

253 A% ba 26 ‘oax b PRI RN} - 3R3bob Y% - 02k 2'20b - - Blbalp [kkballe hfot 2lklie
LT ERI Y3 KE2'RRR DR ISR 240N - 2 bo2 %R - 2t 29% 22 - - Dlbalp bhbslle 860 2lhlie
b2% 0% %2 ot RbR'bR rat02'9: - 2%3'b2x 5t - 2620 b'20 - - Dibalp lbbbeie g60¢ 2Lkl
RB [plbg| By

Rea0rR'RE Dibalp |bhbsjle heoe 2lklie
FOR 520 Dlbolp lbbbajle 860¢ 2lklie
- Dibalh |Gbbajle £00C 2lklle
lojjzty} Dleyoh

ko 3 ho bk oxr‘oon ke BaraER by - 252 %b% ER - - - - Bibolk ldhkiejle heor 2lklie
NTNTTHTN

(522'28) (522'28) Lgeby
P22 |Bolh

A58 R AR 232 kot IV ERIN 3% tba's TSIV SRS
K32 3%2"%0t PRI Y CIREILR ) - 6% Fobat - - - - Bibalp |dbbasjie 8o 2lklie
[RENTTS

e}

[pablblll Lbalh

o305t geora'al o2 'bRRLb Sea'2b%'a PRdh2 |Goln
250 T RA 0ak SebRBe b oxb260%2 - EaRn2bbe bBiboll & £60t ‘b lablk
bl 12 > [p2d RIS Dhjp

2t ‘20b'208 2%%'00% 228 aza‘ost'arb 2&%'orotob 202" 220b Bibalp |bhbsjle heor 2lklie
RS AT RITATHT

@b (2852 (b2x'a3t) %&b eb) lbkb B
beR3b22ab bar'2br % ENFESH 000 Rkt 'bt a2x'nik'ox biboh hie
: hte b Bk

B2 %0\ RER 226 b2k ke FEe 502 bb - b2 ‘906 b2 - 209k 20 - - Dibolp |bhiujle 860t 2lklie
LSIRok:Lh[binkIbh

(292232 (33%%be) (300"%b) (oxa‘bre'b) l&kb] lbkb bR
Erbo%22 SRR e BbeE 00% %22 kb 2bb"bx0b bhsh hie
: hie b BR

TR 0K A KA WRE'%02'9 by *0%'2020% - bazaan 26t b’ 20 Bibolk & £60t ‘b lablk

Qi Oah
Mabty] 2 LRI yRIBY
aki

It & kb lodbhes Ifeb Ribeb b'zh'R




Yo | duret doreria do feifdes

ISR ALY 20k ‘opx b KRB RS RR - 2%3'bob'o % - 02 %e220b - - Dlbolk lbbbajle helor 2lklie

PEE RIS RE2'RRRD% %o RRDE - %22 'bo% RR - RN - - Dlbalk lbbbajle 860¢ 2lklie

b2 %052 IR INHYA roth02'9: - 25%3'b2s"t - 26k t0b 20 - - bipalh |bhballe ¢6oe 2lklle

RB (plbg| bBy

%602 R 22 Dlbolp lbbbajle heor 2lklie

FOR 520" Dibolh |dkbafle 860C 2lklie

= Dibolp lbbbafle €602 2Lkl

loljste} Dleyoh

ko 2 ko bat orR'00a ke DY RN - 2525b% 2R - - - - bibolk |dhiujle heor 2lklie

Lislplbb

(522°28) (522'28) &b}

PRbhI2 |bolh

A58 R AR 2322 ke %ok 2EROR2 %D 1% tha's TN IR TEISTIRS

2322%2%08 ERRNYT S YN ORRELL RO - 6% %obat - - - - bisolk |dhiujle 860k 2lklie

Linlplbb

eyl

I

ookt graraal oxR'bRREDL Ser'2by'a PRbhI2 |bolh

250 ERA 00 BebiR%e20b oxb260't: - FREINSS Dol & g6ot ‘b loblk

bl 12 > ob RI2 DR

2t:‘26b'206 2%3'00% 228 aza‘ost'axb R&%'0x0%0b 02220} Blbolp |dbisjle heod 2lklie

RS AT RINTATI

(O2bR%E) (5RE"%2) (b=r'3E) @%b \kb| lbhb B

bER3b22ab bak2ba's% t26%R2'at 000" kb bx a2’ o bblsh hh

: hie kb Bk

282%%0 RER 220 b2k ke %ee %02 bb - bx 2008 b - IREEYEE - - Bibalp |bbbsle 860t 2iklie

RIS ATN Y RN

(25223 (335" %be) (30035 b) (0x6'bR'b) leb) bhb Bb

NP ERE RPN S0 a%bed 00%%2x"b 2bb%ba'ob bblsh hh

: hie kb Bk

ok OE kR AR are 02 by ro¥%'202'0% - [SEREEH 20t 20b' 20 Bibalp |d €60 ‘b lnblks

Ol @dh

- =~ - me—m-
eR

1 & kb lodbhe Ileb Riheh »°2h'R



oIuTeT doreTed da fafdes | Y9

298.9 @AM AT A HERI RHH W
ik
ot L wwe [
e | wRe | fom | o
RS HI5
AU 9, 063 B A 99,20%,939 99,20%,9%9
9 99 oY : -
oy Yol 9,333,390 9,333,339
I av¥eT fasn =
NRIRISA RE RIS -
I Q008 AT"HH! Ao 93,235,0%3 43,335,0%3
IJq 99 oY :
o9 Yofigd ¥,390,440 R¥,390,440
I a1 fash _
HHATATST g TG _
SIS o1y TR ArsarT 3945 YRR 394 Y5 48R
<ifog uReem ¥ g A
TG 003 HISETT 5,225 ,99% 5,225,994
|red! aReEs 9,84¥,903 9,84 ¥,903
ATGDT BRI
fa=m _
FHRIST -
ST Q018 If<Td! Arsar 10,343,595 90,843,5%
Tl gRWIE 3,049,003 3,049,003
TGB! BRI
o=
REIRINES
TG o6y AfTHSH HisaTd 93,03 559 93,903 559
o fion
g foardt g
JTUIE 093 3Tf~TH®! Hoard RO% L Y% 3,208, 1 ¥%
TS 200y 3ff~THT AT RUSY %Y RUSY %Y

JMTTE Q0l0y 3Ff<THABI HIoaTd 33,5¥%,9%9 33,5%%,9%9




Yo | oiuret doretia da feifdes

¥.9% R I @ e wERi @ G Al

RS ]

EC2IG ] =
-E“
ST 9, Q03 BT Ao 99,20%,839 99,20%,939

IF qY Ay : -

a9 Vfi“ RS 9,333,314 9,333,319
IF ayer fash -

RIS | g -

RS HIS

JTHIE 2008 IfxTHH Hoawd 93,335,043 13,335,043
IF qY oAy :

o Yol 3¥,390,440 R¥,390, 440
I ayeT fasht _
HHATAST g TG -
IS Q04 ATHPH! A 394 ¥ U3R 3945 493
Sifaa aReEE X g A

TG Q063 AT 5,225 99 5,235,39
ATGDT R 9,54%,903 9,84 %003
ASHT G

= -
ARSI _
YIS Q0008 AP Hiard 90,543,59 90,843,595
ATBDT IR 3,049,003 3,049,003
GIGFIRSEIRICRIE

=

AT

MG Qoly IfxTPHr Arsar 43,903 559 93,803 559
Yol femfor

g foardt gea

TG 2013 JAFaHD! HsaTd 2,208 X ¥% 3,208, 1 ¥%
TS 00y 3ff~THHT Arsard UG %Y RUSY, 1LY
IS 20y 3ffTHHT AT 33,5%%,9%99 35%%, 99




oIuTeT doreTe e do fafdes | Y3

126008 % 3929 %08 A% 399 %08 A% - 3929 %08 A% Ibinle k1O [Mehd Dhjlkah
299'9% kL2 - 299'9% L2 2929'9% L2 - 299'9% L2 lodbh » Rikeb
(636'2bb'bb) o30°2bb'bb (©36°2bb'bb) 639 2bb'bb - LRMRbE [llro
- - - - - Ribeb |pllre

(OR300 2b) arxR200 2b - (BR300 3b) LR 200 3b - Phib lsb lind |hid| Bledalk
- [Phib kD [nd [hdd] Bloledk RN LD bb
b blfed lbiDluly Zledle

gl o L | b b6 i | i b b | Db/ o bl | il b b | 3 bl |
I

Blejpm 2o hhnd AERD QR LRbblE

22%"%00'ba 222%00'ba Rlg/pR Ab bie lGASIRD lbkle DDAp| kuie
(%0203 22) (03201 22) bliefaf M Lie [GASRD bIDR bbbl lhik
(06VR'bet "2 b) (oa%'bet"2b) ob[oh Dij| kb Bk
(boz'ery'E) (boz'zry'%) 860C b lablks ‘PXR|ID[RIhek Ah blried

bo2'bht 2 bo2'bht helor 2blie ‘boR|Ib[jhety Mb Lhkd b

2 blicd ol Lkioy QLpbYh Litd lode
2p blied LhIDIR Mb |lp |bRE Dl

bo=2'bbe 2 %bo'R2bE R 1b2 %R 20 bo2bbe 22 %bo'R2bE R 1b2 %R 20 b bhiad Ibibluty Blfede
- - - - @3Iblety |RlfedE kale
lisdblo

BRYID 10g)

B100%R2'%93 z0‘9%R2'9 Er00R2'%93 gr00R2%3 Ibinle BIO [Mbhd Dhjlkah
LR ROENE LN RY LN R lodbhes 3 Bk
(Fbo'R2b2W) %bo'R2bE R (rbo‘axb2¥) %bo'R2bE R LY TN TNTIY

TSRS

RhIB kb oo ohy] Flowalk

[PhIR Ib Yo bhy) Blolle blpp) b 0f
Ab Lbid LhlDluly Sledle

EE Kyl H ot mxw & bo2'bbt 2 y2x‘00%er bor'tay'a bo2'bbt 2 Lslo
- - - - - - RORJID b blied bE
y2r‘oodnt bot‘tasat bo2'bbe e 32x‘o0%er boray'a bo2'bbe e Rl 2b blied

8ot Dalbb 2lklle | helor albb 2iklie o o o
DRI [DImE Ab bl

Lh & k) Rl M Llfed Bb'R




Y8 | oruret dorciee b fafdes

ORI

EY RPN kliefpl Ab bty [@HEIRD BB LbPbbS

[EY LRI INNI)
(220%E R %)
29%‘0o%'ak

oor'ga2'2
220"%k0 22

bba'22% %2
bir‘oxe s
(22xt2x'th)

(26125232 b)

e g T g T e g T T
I

(3b%‘232b%)
b2 'babn
(hb%2R%)
(322'00%'nE)
bak'taaal

botEayat

1k @ hbA

ORI 222’23y
bba'22% %2
bis‘oxa

2oxtoxth

2602523 2 b

rorwsaor 20522 REY

Rlg/pR 2b Ll |GH3IED Ikkle bDDAP| hule
kligfpl b bilzd |GHSIRD [bIDIR bbbk lhik

(3ra %) 2b[2k Dinji| kb Bk
(220%ERRY) 86108 b lablls 'BR|Ib [k b balrted
12r'00%nk heod 2Ll ‘B|b[Rjhiby b bited bE
- Mb o Leltler Lbal Loly) Olpsyj Lebp Lbrd
oox'a3a'2 Mb Bl [hIDIR M (@b (kb Bl
1200 28 YR PP EELLR Y AMb bhfad IbIDiugy Blfede
- - - @ADLl |RlfedMe kale

Itedbho
- - bargln ey
bba'22% %2 - bba'22% 2 lbinle 1 plebd Dhlkdlh
b ‘ores - btz ‘ora's lodbhe > Biwb
(x25t22th) FENETIEIN - NN TSN TATIYN
- - - R (el

(20 58%'&b) 202 583'xb - Phib llsb lind |bid| Bled3alk
- B - IPhi leb ok (ddD SOl kIR leb db

Mb Llied IhlDleky Bl

BUE[pR Mb Lk IGHEIERD G lalpbols

(3b%'22b"%) RligfpR 2 bl |Gh3IED Ibkle bDp| huie
bbb bligfp Mb bbby |GHEED Lk DR bl Lhik
(Rb 3R ob[oh Dioj| kb Bk
(32x‘o0r'n) 860C b lablls ‘PXR|Ib[RIheb Ab blrled

ISP heot 2lklie ‘BRIIb/Dhety b blkd bE

b bhfed lbhhk LLI0R] @LDbh lhdd [brd
2b blied LhidlR 2 |blb lbkb Dl

bz tayat L PR 26328 R AMb birked Lhiblaly Sllde

@3Bk (RlRAE hale
lisdbho

BRIID 8]
Dibheby b Ll %b'2



oIuTeT doreTe da fafdes | YY

oot 2% %bt ax%E2t'200h rot'%2% oot 2% kbt ax%L2t'200h rot'%2% TN
- - - - - - Iblpbb fele kh B2l Sloep Sy olhk
- - - - - - @BkhpR 1ehylr dlp) lklbidut: Dy kR
- - - - - - IRpjf bl Blpiute Iblake brlefle Dlbdp S bl
_ - _ _ - _ 1RB|B lbeAD (bbbl @13
00t 2% bt aRrE2r 200 20k 5% oot 2% kbt aRrE2r 200 20k 5% ngpbh DK 2lbdp X @lhk
e E

B
E

elb LYy Bloek R Qlhk 2b'a

000'0¥%6 hb¥ - - 000'0¥%6 hb¥ - Lslo
- - - - hale
- - - - bl thikdix
- - - - hisk) Dibleele RIPRL LR b Rale
000'0%a kL% - 000‘0%e Kbk - Lbbe Bgpabate

- - hisk) Rlbalinp [plbk

= e

: ;

Rrbrea kb 2reERY 0% SRS R KOR RrbEoa t b 2ReERY 0% RS RREROR lhelo
3%2bt0 'bb Eabeanbe IS RIRINS 2%2hka b Eabean‘be %R Ak AbE Rate
- - - - - - ph plehe blor
- - - - - - lheln AbRlte
200'n32'02} o tba0x [EEETSNEENS 200'n32'02} A RIER TGS [EIRETSNEEDS higl) leb ik bigie
- - - - - - pleelle 1plb B
axtabiox EET N gx%00'00} a%:tabox EE N gx*00'00} (RiRle |blb [R=1-Y

- - BOhe Lle ldldkb]

£

-
E

Ly Ratf bR



Y& | ouret doretia 3o fafdes

PRI OERT

St bibata

%oo'th222% 08

PRI L EebEbata %22'orrton'a s Liaslos
306258 2% 3bybas'ae %akord 306 2% 2% 3bybas‘a2 %at'otad kate
000'0%%'00b 000'0bkER 0065 b bbb 000‘0%%'00b 000‘0b¥ES 00652 b 5 bb higle] Bl
202"2bx 26 b'bb tho‘o¥a 22" ERINCIN A PR 202"2bx2ab'bb tho‘o¥naay FRINCINH RIS higk] bbb
x023:"5b%0b 0% R251%R " 36028222 x02%3:"b%0b 0% 225252 236288222 higke| dpblie
P SRY-EP RN RIS TR 1N 232'9%2 %0 5 b PISRY L PR Shaaraa kb 232'9%52'%80 b b2l Phddko
bar'202292 ret'rebboe we2'2boar ba k262293 ret'2ebbae re2'2bor e ale
ber ‘2 ¥e 2R 26% 2% R 'R CIVPR RIS ber'a ket 26% 253k 'R o%ttatE0S higk] Ble
30b'by2 RS bba ‘b ‘b ‘a 2232 PR R 30b'by2 e Ry bba b2 ko ‘a 2925%2E B3R R higk| Lk
000'062'2%6/'a 00030 SRR b 2k ‘abb'oka 2b 000062 2868 00030 SRR 2k ‘abb'oba‘zb hizk| dRblie
2002 %3239 b oxo'aa% 22k ababrtarar 200°2 %8 3220 0x0'aa% 23b'x abote2%r0" 2 ®2IE Dlrltedb

lnabg}

highl ledall ox '8

| @ 1ehalls Gl Db GSBRI> Leb Wk [laxbhe RIRE] kKNS A0S Liladbp| Lblibie BIRR| | Pl LiEhA LI Lbhinlet B3 Ll bp 32bslH DRIGI fls

lheio

=

1k @ hdd

e

kale

IDignty Blbjb] higlie

hiby 158
hibd abiolko

Duft) lekhlmibl RIS

IDlgui Rhklpl biglie

hiby 158
hlbd Abinlke

Dy} (@bl

@3ladbhe RID] hALNS bR



oIuTeT doreTe e d fafdes | Yo

LR ksl
93k bk kiEhis
llexbr RIDR| BB DR abb|

ihlk Yadl)
kete
Il Rate
alpaiy lhle
Iphlt labba

.« | & -~
I @ habd Rhik br'x
PRI LERT wEaebEbnta %00%bat2%'0 PRI LERT LEatebEbata PEERIRS-E Y Lilo
%028 h r22h 2%3'bab %0 '2th r22ath =%2'bab bate
: : - - - - bt inkpe
626 bbey 30 ED bbe 0] bl Iokjhlin
1% %% %%2 KOO R: DRI 3% %%k %2 K00 R ararat'alb N
bE% 208 tha'zat 02bey'2n bE%' 20 tha'zel %03 bea2r Sualh L2 2
232000 bao‘o2b bt IR EEERR 3 PRI NP bao‘o2babt IR EXEER 208 bdp|hle
- - : - - - lizps flpalie
003k ta2'0t 20K 2SR AL R R oReER ‘020 oor 3k taa'ar 20K 2B R AR ER trx‘or2'o2bon lkhe |Plht

lodbp)|
=

I & kb loh@ab| bio|ibb 15B |bhigh] Dk Dibdalk |'ox'x



YT | ouret doretia 3o fafdes

%Ebe002) brasat’00% LRI wEb %002y braaat‘00% IR RIS Lhsio

266038 %0 ae2'o%t 222 2b0'2be 503 266928 %0 at2'o%r 222 RREQRL 0% bate
%22 %28 b3b 225 'bb23b a3b3%bbab %22 %28 b3b 225 'bbht23b a3b3%bbab Bhlp plehd |[dlb b
- - - - - - bRJlb birbele 0] kIR
bar'aby'2y 2000 %% by eeRaEbaor bar'aby'2) 200'0%% by IR RN L3Ikl Plb bD)
- - - - - - pR> bklie binbie Ll
- FYNE o131 SeERR2% - FYNE o131 B R e Inlko |blb BB I[Phik
b%0%08 52 252 bbbakb 2%6 52 b 06 b%0%08 52 252 bbbakb 2%6 52 b'oa ol |blb b Lkhighy
xo3'2%¥%ob 3ba‘btoxb a%RERL L xox‘2¥%¥%ob 3ba‘btoxb A% RERR L Wplb bb| » Sip
26k baa kb %30%0'23 ot "E0"Sh 26 baa'%b %320%0'23 ot "%E0'Sh BoB] [blb kR
- B - - B - bl lplfd Liglbboie
2082 %231b k% Rk bab %0r‘0%baet 2062 %231b 2r% e bab %0t‘0%baet lfsdblo |l [blbb) (kIO
- - aor he 't - - aor he 't PORYb |Rebeh Lbinlk IO lbbd Djlhlh
./ &= | -~
b & kA bR|Ib Rale Er'R
28 LasQ) Inpjk

bt (o0l ay lipb Bl
leabte 1ehyle LiRK Lihe Bi
lrodblee LoDl Liplo Biz
Bisalk 1@ b lablks

lndbg)

L & by blPk MBS ki Ihlledbhko brx'2

kale

lledbho Dajb) PIbIdRb Bable
llpable yfly 1ol3k 2 Leb PBle (o2
llarbio E._m\_ blbk gk _Wm

lte2ble Dyl |b|fepety

=% [ & |
Ik @ hor lledbho 28



oIuTet doreTie 3o faifdres | YQ

%22 ‘002 KRb by2t0%k2b Ehaonaen %22 ‘002 KRb ba2k0%k2b EhaomaEn Bot 2kt l@ljmb Ibiole |ebiuie 2lklle
A¥ReRE'2 toaaab b 6260200k A¥ReRE'2 toanab b 6260200k hlo Diglhle 2lbRmb lbinlk
(25 Wer'R) (by%'bra'a) (x2'22E%) (225 REE'R) (by%'bra'a) (ax2'22E%) (blabll) Lk ®&|ihb)
(220%9bx'b) (2b2'268b) (:00%%2'9) (220%9be'b) (2b2'208b) (:00%%2'9) RIO D] Diblbio|k
- - be2'0R2% - - be2'0R2 % Blbhle 1bh|l lhibiole
ELERLY 1Y EoabeEvab Fro‘aob e EEERIY 1Y EoabeEsab Ero‘aob e Row akth lblyjheby lblolk 1k b lablis
I T R S o
b & haa bIokAILS IbRok Akt lbljhib Ibiole 2 E: 'R
2:o‘ott'vab EeR 0% Eel bo'% K205 2:o‘ottvab EeR'00% Eel bo% K200 BRJI> kb kO |dhiule 2lklie
xEa08 b 22b% %0 bt aEYba B xEa08 bt 22b% %0 bt aERba B ol » b 1Bp|R Ble
(220%bx‘b) (2b3'260‘b) (200%%2'9) (220%bx‘b) (ab3'2e0‘b) (200%%2') Rl® DA Diblbinlk
(0%0'%aL'E) ox%'223'b 22252 'be (0% %Rkt ox%'223'b 222'b%e b Lelbbll e8lkb)
RORR2RLRL 2to‘ott e b ERY RO P RORR2RLRL 2to‘ottab ERY RO PRI bib lbiole kO 1@ b lablls
I S -
b @ kb

BIPBAIDS 1bhok lbblie lGbRId |binle hi® Dijlklh & R

boa'beb'a PEDRFLRY to% bra'ab boa'beb'a PELR P to%'bra'ab RIS bb|bdb Ibidhb lblo|k
%2200 BRb b2200 Kb Eoaona e %2200 BRb b2'200 Kb EoaonaEhe Ll
Rate

2200 HRb br2'rea k2b Eoa‘onyEae 2200 %Eb br2're0 k2b Eoa‘onyEhe higk| ®b
Ehlode [pldrb

2R3 lodlRIR

I

b ke (sseoov UBld) Ryh Ihbblp :'E:'R
SRR CEERIANEH 202 KRt SRR OR2ER oxxzor'2t 202 KRt BRI> bhin lbbR|> ki@ bk
SRR SR LR oxxror'at 20:ReR'E SRR SR LR oxxror'at 208 K2Rt Rob il lbbdpd bE
%2200 WRb SEF LR EIN Eoa‘onhEhe %2200 WRb b2're0 kb Eou'onhEhe Rol akgy lobjeb kol
2to'ort"veb PR RIS bo's h20 3 2to'ort v b PR RIS bo's F20D 3 roft |binlie |bbR|> 0
2to'ort"veb R RALPE LS bo's F20 3 2to'ort"veb ERFRALPE LS bo's F20 3 Rof |binlie [bBR|ID Buth

Roft |binlie |bbR|> SSuthble
2hi

. /&= |
1k @ hbp

@3hkd 1bASIBD lhlabp| lblkable RIBB| bE:'R



&O | diurct doreTia da féfdes

- - - - Lbsio
e L e

Lbdle bdBIRE lbblbbll Ltk

3lekok k¢ L (nlpyBbR) khlate lbhyjle Bln

DAY

. | & -~
b & had khine |SDJlr PO 2R
%0%'b %0% b %03%’b %0%'b %0% b %03%'b t&-of bk ph
%Re 2 %Rex %R %Re "k %hek %Re s ot-ob Ibk ph
%08 %0t 2 %08 R %08 %0t 2 %08 R ob-o bk ph
22 by
%00 % %00 % %00 % %00 % %00 % %00 ¥ Bb 1hbb LI Ibkaplk
%k R %0% 2 %0% 2 %Re & %0% 2 %0% 2 hi® Diglhle 2RIk kol
%003 %0% "% %O0% "% %00 %O0% % %O0% % ab 28

= | &
I 6 kA [ECTNTRAT F@Eg.mm.»

BEL'0%2 bb0RR ‘te 233’03k BEL'0%2 bb0R‘tx 233’0322 Lo

RN bb'0Rate o3y'or% 'tk 2bio%a bb% 0RR E: 233025k LIRblE ik ®S[lkp]

I _

b & hdd by (GdBRD Ibkle DDI| hule 3Ex'R
PRI P %26 'b%e‘'2b 25 Reh'S 23t Ree ke %26 'b%e‘'2b 25 Reh'S Lhsio
(R ¥ya%E'2) (zen'n2b kb (e26'0=20'0%) (R¥ya%E'2) (zen'D2b kb (e26'0=20'0%) hlo Diglhle 2R lbinlk
Sba'abbs bb2'osaxb L% 2bb Sba'abbs bb2'osa2b 2E%2602'bb kB Inlko
PRSIV RS bbka'20b'ab barbe2ab PRSI AN RS bbka'20b'ab bare29b re 1BpR Bl

Inxbp)
had |GHZIBD lbladbb| LIRbL Ll k'E:'R



oIuTeT doreTe e do fafdes | &9

000'bbx 50t 02%2%0" bt 's 22 %%t 2202
000'bbx 50t oob @ DIK AR lodlRIB obb'EdE 0¢
02%'2%0 % bt's 0ob & DIK Mela loMBIR 0247k 0bb'E6)
2%t 2202 0ob & DI kI3 lndBIR BTSSP 07
wh 1wk
000'bbx 50t oob @ DIK AR lodRIB obb'EdE 0¢
00 Rab'bex oob @ DIK ARy lodRIB Hh3'bbe 26
22’2202 oob & DI kI3 lndBIR BEEHY 2P 07
Wh e
000'000'000'% 000'000'000‘0h 000'000'000'0b Uoh Dbplie
lo2bly

./ /| |

b & hdbd 2R loMRIB |7 R

| & ehyjle bEBIRE Ikipbhl3 Ikfgbie 1Lyl lnbla BIQBLG IrRE MOREE 10yl lablkb LaPbbl3 Leb laMBIR © k2
000'bb2 %20 02%'2%0'5 bt 2252202 000'bb2 520 02%'2%0 5 bt 22252202 Lhslo
- - plels 2lepIe fobelh
000'bb2 %20 02%2%0'% bt 22%%e'220'2 000'bb2 520 02%'2%0'5 bt 22252202 Aklg IndMRBIR
e momes  memem memes  mges RS ww

I @ b Uoh 2R 38

- - - - - - Liasln
rate

dklp roglile b Lk ok

2kla Abgjiiie b bk

e

b & hdbd DRID eRblle GRIR GBI LB W




&2 | dureT garcIaR dob faifdes

00x%2% "% bro oob%0%' 2t 23°0 (Salhold Q) 16 RESIZ RIIRIR

008t '2t E%'o 0022858 gh'o (Salkold Q| 1K bhohs ohp|
0ot bbbt %0 00002 % %0 s Uole Bib
00t'brb R tyo 00X BIRON 230 oy 2512k |3
ooan'ann’a s 330 00%2%0'2 % 330 lhifz 2513k 3.3
0O% by A% 3600 oobaa 'ty 30 el lebR 1 e 25I1ap B
000'00% 83 %20 000'23% ke %2°0 Qloglle |bla Qlbd 1By
00%'bba"y a%o 0ot‘o0% ‘26 a% 0 Rlegle i fmp]
00t'00%'2bb Whb 0ob3RE 2% b SEb SV NESHY
00t‘2:2'brb 2y'h 00 RS RED ay'h ol bbup)
oot'ate 22 ba'e 0039t 'bhx ba'e oy 2513k bin
00E REE RAS'E bbox ooktra'm0rt bb'0R 1BbI0LE ‘blp ‘@) kb RiElehh3le

[ wem [  Beyew | 200 ewer | @ Beyaw |
ladbb)

e e

lodbb] lblkdbla lbdk LUk |96 Buby % oho Eax'R

000'bht5t0'%t %00 00b 02%'2%0'5 bt ‘e %00 00h 22582202 %00 00b Lhalo
o0o¥:ortal'h %b% 0R %O R2E AR E %b% 0% oottr2'20t't %b% 0 bolg|lby iz
00% %O %0t 0b 265203026 %2k 0b RV RORE] %6\ 0b hate
00230 R %3R'b %3k 28 e et byt %%E 2R b%2%0%% byt %68 2 LodRIBbE
oox'26xth %ER0 to%' 202 %30 29t 'ote st %% O Q3lkdh hale

Q3R MIKDININE hale

@3k MIKPININE bbb b

Mbah @lhk

00%'202%%'b %%0 %% For'aze Ak 'a %%0 %% 225 KRR 900 R %%0 Bk bolgjiby |abbd

@ hd) BRB|K @ hkd DIDIK @ hd) DRDIK
-

Dby AR ladRIR 3 R



oIuTeT doreTa e d fafdes | &3

| @bh EalRDE hed DRADIK b lblhik bR Ibhie bk dbfie Llabl| lkwklbk] bhikk)
Ble RRIIDANS binjibln Dlllb
| @8 Dijh 93hd) |GABIRDA Dbt |bu3kb DIk lkhlh Bk | @bhEL s lhhid b DRPK he lblalblie ks LS bl bl lbish Yabby 30k [abp) abble bladl) wklelk| bhiklk)
Bl lodblph (208
| @8 Dhlh ©3ho) |GASIRDE Dibltill [k&2kb Dl lkhle Bk | @phfl Lo

DRARIK ob Lblthlk b Ihbyd @lhbkd b @bhbl lhein Ibhid 1SLI0 lodRIB bed DRDIK of lblhll bR kbbb LbE ol & lblioh 1OE haox Ibhie bbn dbfie Llabl| lbklbk] bhikk)

1opin IndRIR
a%rotoeES'h 002 %34k PETR NS a%rotoES'b 002%%3%b% EERER TR JIESTENY
- - = - - = hld hale
- LR 2% R AR 028 - EYR2% R RE¥O2R hld BQID plebd
- - - - - - Al hlab
(22%'0%2) (r22'bat’ad) (brE2%'9R) (22%'0%2) (r22batad) (2bRE2%92) LIRblE ik ®S(lkp|
- - - - - - hib lnabipfh 1alkled
P SRNCI 208 % R boa teabeb weEa%% o 2628 % e boa 223‘be b ke Bop akty
- - = - - = hle k8IRSHER bk
- - - - - - bl 18gin Dloh
00K 22bmebab 22bre%ab 00% A2 22b%e%ab 22b %% ab Rl binlplbb [Ble
- - okx'a2x ek - - P EI 12 Kl ®blkb|
- - - - - - hle Ispin 1bdy Uoh
- %b2t00'th 2%0 %% % b - %b2't00%h 2%0 K55 b hltb BORIIDADE dinflblb Dlrlfed
AARELDEY Sha RS R 3%% 22% R FERRLER R ITPE 3%% 292% R Rl lnddlpsh (22
bbbt Re2'b ba ka3 %20 A% R0 A% bab'bet re2’h ba ka3 %20 AR ROL R %E Rl 1801 ladblB

I S

1k @ hdd

lndbg)

SETTC-R TN



&8 | orure dorciia 3o faifdes

20%000b20"% 2atear 20’8 WAL REa'bre‘R 20%000b20% 2t r0's WAL REabre'R [T
- - - - - - Ll (eoylels Lz |bDblkie bl

- - - - - - bl Lodlel LIRKS lbkhDDIK

- - - - - - IRTTN bhe 1Sl 28)d

3 %e00bi0o% asaa‘zoa’s RRY 02932 ekeeo'bioR eaeaxr'ror’® WAL RO2%93R% bl Lbhjlils LiRhe 102hISNhle

- - ooo‘orstart - - 00002 %t 2 lind> [bhyflrks ladbdp|
£6oe &80 helo& g6oe &80 heloe

b & hba @21kp|R Ikhyjliks LodbB) &2k "2
tontatana: RR2Roora’at ReriadkRhtha EoatobMashr kR2Rroors’or weriadihitha I
000'00%'2 000'00%"2 3% RAORb 000'00%'2 0000022 a3 aRAO0Rb IDBbPIK fule
- - - - - - > BrldK
222k R03%e oze'osbEer'E  3brozy2obta ax'b2kRoyt: oze'osbEer'r 3brozy‘2obii Dblbln by
- B - B - - Iblders bl bigle
266 2b2'2 2 2300 b0 s bb bay'2ry'ont 266 2b2'2 2 2300 b6 s bb bay'2ry'ont Q20P| 1b3) Ihbhbd
t2keena20  axEalbabyt bathat2%3'a rokhen'920%  eak'aibabh baxhaz2%i'a 28)de Balbdbo » plblpd

g6l0¢ 8610& heloe g6l0e 86l10& heloE

b @ bdbd PRIIb Dblikh 2R
2%2'baaB02'2:  abres'ar2%a SeboR%EEbER  oREbinho22r abkrtea’ar2%a beboRsEEbEN Limio
- - - - - - IbEbIK ine)
- - - - - - LT
30 R9000 b0 arear’ror’a RRSREebre'a 20Ree0'bi0 aean’roa’a WAL REebra‘a ©21RplR h|lkl laabb)
ENR IR TR IS Rroroora'at weriakihtas o totRaesh Rroroora’at weriardhtas
£610¢ 860& heloe £610e 86l10& heoe

Db Dlklle Dlkbk 2lkle Dk 2lklle Dbk Dlklie Dbk 2lklle Db Dlklle
I
b @ kb




dtureT doreTia™ 3w feafes | &Y

r@@v@w%
RIRP) bbllkk kd b33k bk | ba lbhk iob 1hbOlble 102l b laxdgllklks Whie lake 'Delbie Lbblabh ‘Dolble balph @2k PRIk 33 kelyb] DRejth Lhdp b holor Mlbh 2lklie
Eﬁﬁmxw

Lsls @b

[T

Lokl kb

ho ek kb h 2D IPb Ik kb dh

leplkk fb ®n
E@EE%_%_UE.I?EE@;TWFMW_IW:mv_MWUFEﬁM

LEPRIA 10Q) PRy
Liselo

Lol kb
he [mb b h AD |Pb Lk kb bd
EEHEWBW

bbb L BQJ bbbl 1R 1B 19Q) L @E%@ﬁ
______________

BbRIK InQ) 2 2%

[ Y TIYRTIINEN Y Y]
Lbhflr IDlguk 2 bbby
LPbRIK ok g0 lbkihk phie

JIEST0Y
lehylete g 2 bbby
lohyle 1blgrb 2 bbby

LbEbJl [oh L@ [eladbhe > Rjhak

£6loe 860 heloe £6loe 860 heoe
bbbk 2lklle Bslb 2lklie Balbb Dlklle bbbk 2lklle Balbhb 2lklie Bk Dlklle lodbb]

= [ & ]
| g2 Diysh (@bl lkdblo lblodbp) RiRE] M 1Yl by DibdhifMpIR|E DRejet (bbp
e IDBbPIK Uoh & 2b g




&& | oruTeT dorcTiaY o faifdes

®fF Lhikibke Rjheb

- = - = @0 hiby Ikeb [k ph
%ebrbrab 9% E2bAb %ebrbrab %% E2bRb @2 loddbll 3 Rln BARY/ Slb 29|
- - - - @20 2thby[RJR)/2)e)
- = - = ®off 1BbPIK
- 22%%b% 'R - 29%%b% A ®2fF hepllhed
otx "3 2 bb 265 28028 b otx w322 bb 265286 22 b ®fF Ibp
®f} bhiablke [nd
T mw [ s [ ew [ e
I S B -
b @ had lslie biabld LD o Li's
OB RBRR BB a0%0ba Rt OB RARR BB 00% 0ba2 kRt kb Iblko [hein
- = - = Rale
- - - - _QVQ_V bR|blie bRISK _SVW__TT kB
- - - - khiPg (phyle Lo
- - - - [phIB Lok
523%baEbbe 260'boa At at 523%baEbbe 260'boa At at higks] 2lbk3IR
ox:aba'ab aEx‘ara‘or ox:aba'ab aExara’or IDipbb lhdh Ky Glht
06'0bt'b ERYREIIN 208'0bt'b 25R e IDlpbb (plisd RIDB| LD b
||jH -
1 & b bR bl ot')
2rbase ot B LEROLRR 2%baskbor't B e DR lpalbslie Iolko lbmio
wr2'200b a%2%23'bb R2'200'b 0%2%23'bb el
260% %ea2b b263k0"22 26% %ea'2b b26 3028 Phib lkb lind pehe
box ‘002 ke bza'a2b'21b box‘00x ke bea'n2b'21b IINTIATNINING]
280"pa:'2RRE CLELVEELYSA 2E0"pR: 2RRE CELVEEIYYA PhiR IlRD lind lObAIE
2:%k'tob'on 32bbbotrb 2:%tob'on 32bbbotab [Phib b lind Bloldh kP LD b
ar2'a2bas 2023212 or2'r2b'28 2023222 Dibalp (033 IbidR RID| LD b
- - - - had Iblpbb bbb XId Olhk
SRR 200 e 5he SRR 208 e 5hE blhk bhb lD bl
T mw [ s [ ew [ e
= | &= | -~

I & ko) Lebslle Idlko He'R



oIuTeT goreTe T da fafdes | §©

%2030t 'bab tha'0%2%b %2030 'bab Eoa'0%2'%b lpibslie djlhie bE

- kate
PR ER X 1%0'233%2) [IR-ERFYY 3%0'233%2) BlEblp Ll Lbdbl3d |32 abb]
- = - = Lplbalie [alRIO k| d)lhlk

= - = Lplbslie Inlko [hdmb dyjlhlke

0%\ B2 R - 0% B2 R - BlRbl [tk bhdk Lblgb] (bbb bylhike
(E0”'E%2'”) (toR‘een 62 (E0r'E%2'”) (tox ‘o006 blobb bRl Rt lGLhb by|lhike
IS Y- S Y-S R Y-S

I R R S -

@ han lplbalie dlhike DB &g
25%0%2ak 22%0%% 2k A5%a%2'a 22%0%% 28 pR blabld lkD ®B 0d
oas'ob% b bb2'000%h oag'ob% b bb2'000%h bR bbb b @y ke
- - - - blabje > @B lokfb)
SaEBERY %0 bR S SaEBERY %30 bRx 'S ®fF pthbyl[2121/8l9)]
- - - - ki Injols
- - - - blabid IDBDDIK
%rb222%h 6% 0802 %rb222%h 26% 0802 ®ff Sl 203k [lingy
T ma [ wee [ wa [ wes

S R -

b & hdd BB bLREe lkD o b:x
LSS FLEE-E N R RI2REY S ELEE-EN AR RI2REY Lplbelie Liabld LD @R lhin
%o LR 02 226025 0nb %eRLRs 02 %26 %% 00b \blbalie blabjd lkD ©f pate
OR:ELRE 002b26\2 OREHRE 002'bae'x 181k, 3pe
32052 BRR G2 RN 32052 BRR G2 TR blab|d [bbblkin
2%babbe R 3bbbae s A 2%babbe R 3bbbae s blal|d 1kkhbDIK
rEERrot %2320 rEERrot %2320 ®of 1okiip)

- 0 el



&C | oureT dareTieer da faifaes

22"%E3%h %o2t0rhb 22"%E3%h ko202 kb Meh|Bhle

bra‘azt s AAR AL 22 bra‘azt s RRRRE 22 Iop| bRk
Se2'0%' %% kAR b Se20% %% kAR b bR Rlob| lb I
232 2%" Ebores 232 22%" Ebores bliath
06% 200" %b aba‘obxab 06% 200" %b aba‘obxab hle Rhh
oxxror‘at ELER TR oxyxor'at 2% Ry’ blbhe
bo¥% 5 %0 R3b 25b'bba'bbx LO¥% S %0 R3b 25b'bba'bbx JISE:N
orttro"th 008)'2303%b oxttroh 006)'2303%b bob
I S X Y RN

. [ := | -

L & b kR Rbhd 3E'2
%8 kE0'e Ey2n2'2% %R kE0'e Ep2n2'2% T

Z lledbho BN [k [l
- llpablo bR Ihidjmby phie » PlEs
- leabke bERUS LE Ihloddhe » Bimb
= llsdbko bRjn L8 kbbbl lblab RID kbbb

3 LRI 2k EOEION lleable hiRjln L& bblke kb
25 e R R r22'q0b' 2% 252 R R %22'00b'2%2 lldble bRln S IBIPhiR kb ok bb| leealh
282"%28°b eEb'aRe 282%22'b 22b'axe lrible BRI LE 1LIPhIR Leb ok bb| Sl RIp kD ¢
C ma | we [ | e -
= | &= |

b @ ko) (elbble kule D (IDd)/lledble BEMUS Lok ¥ s
BRI 524 o2x'ar2'08 BRI 323 o2x'ar2'08 T
oo¥'2t'2 %02'022%b oo¥' 22 %02'021%b kate
- oto'a0b' - 0to'a0b'% bbb/l L8 Ibigkp] Lol 3 LR
- - - - blie o) bjlleir
12%%0b - 12%%b - Llable/ltll LE lhidkb] lbjhib [llro
CEERYY PYSREH CEERYY b2t Llbbll/lthil LS Ihigeb] lbladdhe 3 Riheb
Ebbaxz: ER0'2b%% Ebbaat't ER0'2b%% 1310 lhladbher |Pbb|E
(boa'R3b"3b) 00K'ARR‘2 (boa'R3b"3b) 00K 'RAR‘2 bliabl/lhil LS 1bRok Akt lbL|wh (Llro
we2'2br (E26>22) P EIETO R (£26>22) blRbll/lhll 2iblgeb] khibh
ITTEENEY aobasha PRTEERSY aobasha Lelxlie b8IRGLE Ibkkblb] Uabb]

I S Y =X Y X R Y S

T -~

I @ ke Ieiulle BOIRR hule 23 R



oIuTeT doreTe d féfdes | &Q

2232%920'b% 22202 b 222%020'b% PET RN Lhalo
toa'a%y'b too'bro't ron'2%y'b too'bro't bRl lbbikb phie
- = - = P2k RI2 b |l
SESRER SR S0 bEx By GERER SR S0 bEk %y P2k B2 lbladbhe lRD Biwb
o mw [ mes [ ew [ s -
I

1k @ kA

kR BREMh X [P2d BIG 2%'R

obb'a%0'bot 02 /6 0RE obb'a%0'bot Shtaabbat Lhsio
2%ert'on TR 1) REe2E 08 ERSN 1) bate
- - - - liedblo 10Q] Babie
%0% bA%A - %0% bR% - kB DORDMA dlalhll Dhledh
- - - - phr bllah |Gk (flo
tox'008 %y 2b%2bk'ba tox'00a %y 2b%2bk'ba kR 10Q| bolap
kR Rbbaeb ar2'0%e'x’b %R Rbbatb RAR SRR AR pR bhitedbhe Rolkld
Fox‘2eb a: 2r2 ke e ¥R Eb AL EXREER be Lo 3 oplhbre
rro'28 8 a0z 'oba 220'228 a0z ‘oba @3bR kele [Rabab LBRhIRE
000'otb'b 00%ebr'b ooo'otb'b 00&322'b R laBlphine
3ba'ebk 0609 %h 3baebk 080 %h kB fale |GDjR GOlbR
00% %6\b'b 000‘2%%'b 00% %6\b'b 000°2x*%'b bk ®ob bbb GOlbh
I O S Y- R YN

.« [/ == | -~

b @ kb

kR bolbh hele gt'2

| & eh3IRD bk ok Ibhe lbkR bl Blehd Jobrh lwhoh skt bnd 10al 1k ble @ohjle » af 1khb be | @ 1GhyL bolkl bRy det Rl LIRK AbMRle bl BlRlnd [lebd @ xS

22%0n0'0k) SN 25%000'08) ok S %3 %k linls 0B
292 'bbt23b £202bo'bib 2922 'bbt‘23b 202 bo'bib RElp [pMehd
25390 bR SORRRY RN 2%3930 bR SORRRA RN TN
oxa‘tor'2 ERR bR R oxa‘tor'2 ERR LR R Q2R felp DRelbeby kblbbd
%3%'000'0b 222 20t b %3%'000'0b 222 ‘20tbe kB kP Dlbate SHAN
- - - - e bheh
- = - = R byjlRlle lhakly L3 tibd bblb
- - - - LAIOIE Rlobd
b0 2% 2ESRLR2 b0 2% % 2ES LR JI211)



©O | oureT dorenaR 3o feifoes

N2 0 %oke) 0k N2 %2608 ab b [MbblhK
EEIEIEICEYS 3202600 'R R I EEIEIYA 3202600 'R R kR b linio
(39%2%2") - (29%2%2") zEaeb Able lbad 10@aBe khale ¢ LARR[LB(
(223%25% %) (2t%'oxtn) (223%25% %) (2t%'orts) ARl 10 lhklie 102& 2 @ LAlDR
1022002 h 228 KRS 2b 1022002 b 22 KRS 2b MRS bh lbMb @3B bopll bAIDR Dafl] Ibblolpl M bblin
o&y'23t"ho% 0%2'brot28 o&%'23t"ho% a3 20% 228 (@b DIRDIK of) 2
PRI SN aty'arboby’h PRIV S LN AR ALY 00 lhik (bhjle A

T e T e e T e

I

1k @ hdd

Llob| lblhlk LAIRE A kB M bbRYR

tR0'2%2'222 2% tob2ax tR0'2%2'222 2% 2obax kR MRl [heio
- - - Plh 2 [@hylle LEBIRE @2Yh

- - bl@bb [kab 2

b2 ‘b bR (%03E0%'2k) b2 'bxb % (503E0%'2k) LBIRE LBAAIDME] LOllbhle
beabeb' % (503%03'2) bea ‘b b % (503%03'2) kB Mb Ll
2 220%0b 2 220%0b = biolplbh [wadblle (Bo@lh
EEINERERLE Y L0200 252 EEINERERLE Y RO RS blie Bk
[ASRILREFY OE0 200 R B A SRRV Y AE0 200 'R %A R 20 Blb

C me e T e
®b FYATY

b @ hdbd kB MbRIR br'R
r¥e‘2x0'0b ott>oa r¥E‘2x0'ob ot:>oa JTIEY
tRE'2x0'0b ort208s tRE'2z0'0b ort2ons R kel
- = - = R lkkabkh
- - - - lledbho [t]Id [b|pasuay
- - - - bLREhE lIne
I Y A Y Y S Y S e
I R S

I & kb hB bBOlph A 0R°R
%R0 2260 bk £20°b20 3 %R0 2260 bk £20b20 3 Ll
- - - - ITNENTSN TS
%R0 2260 Bk £20b30 3b %AO2 260 bk £20°b30 3b phie e 1wl LREhle

-
2

s
%
2
£
E

=
%
F

1k @ kb

Llalie LOlBR A 558



fdd= o1 AU b1/ aNadrad) fdazor

NG T Q004
(Aure g e Fm aEim)

oIuTet doreTe? do fafdes | ©9

NpH W H
faaet 9 a¥ T qY

AT e R e sgERes! A/ 9,9%%,03% 3% 9,9%%,90%,0%9
dewis
AR SATST By 335,509,044 R¥0,0% 350
AcE Tede Iy 9,0%% 3069 q,083,99
AT ARG STRETIE By 99,%¥ 0,343 93,003,599,
HHAN] dIfed Py ¥5043% %045 Y4
3

ST S P . YRS Y
frame TR At AT/ 203,345,049 Q3§ 4%0,¥¥q
Frame e
T gadar/eifees] @Ts gl Wiy gcdg (98,353 0%3)
FOT AR IR TSAS _
FIAFMT TIETh S TIRATH Teae =
iR feg grfmel awere gcds (59,539,544)
R R TR gcde (R2,399,50%)
=y gcas -
Aodie IREHT ATHIH Teae _
faHIg! weTd Hede (¥925349R)
IR TTIE
faaRur Arg A1/ AeaE $5%,093 536 R 3%,4¥0,¥¥q




©Q | oiureT doretia do feifdics

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited (“NBBL" or “The Bank”) is a limited liability company domiciled in Nepal
which has been in operation since 1994 AD. It's registered and corporate office is at Kamaladi-28,
Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is registered with the Office of Company Registrar as a public limited
company and carries out commercial banking activities in Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra
Bank as Class “Ka” licensed institution. The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and its stock symbol
is “NBB”.

The Bank offers full range of banking products and services including loans and advances, deposits,
trade finance, e-commerce services, bullion, etc. to wide range of clients encompassing individuals, mid-
market, corporates, multinationals, large public sector companies, government corporations, hotels etc.
The financial statements for the year ended on 16 July 2018 (Ashadh 32, 2075) are authorized for issue
by the bank management on 29 November 2018. The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility
of preparation of financial statements of the bank.

1.1. Subsidiaries

The Bank has one wholly owned subsidiary namely Nepal Bangladesh Capital Limited which was
incorporated on 2074/07/08 BS as a public limited company as per the Companies Act 2063. It has
obtained Letter of Intent to operate and will be in operation in due course of time. The financial year of the
subsidiary is same as that of the Bank ending on 16 July 2018 (32 Ashad, 2075)

1.2. “The group” represents the Bank and its subsidiaries.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2075.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in a single statement, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in
Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2075.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB with
effect from fiscal year 2074/75. To comply the NFRS provisions following dates have been considered, in
terms of first time adoption.
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Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar English Calendar

Opening NFRS SFP* date 1 Shrawan 2073 16 July 2016
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashad 2074 15 July 2017
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2073-31 Ashad 2074 16 July 2016 -15 July 2017
First NFRS SFP* Date 32 Ashad 2075 16 July 2018
First NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2074-32 Ashad 2075 16 July 2017-16 July 2018

*SFP- Statement of Financial Position

The 332" meeting of the Board of Directors held on 29" November 2018 has approved the financial
statements accompanied with notes to the financial statements and the Board acknowledges the
responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Bank. The approved financial statements have
been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 24" annual general meeting of the Bank.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Bank’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where
indicated otherwise.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgments in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the financial statements.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements
and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.
The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if
any.

2.4.1. Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Bank is satisfied that
the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment,
the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies

The Bank has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standard (NFRS) as at 16 July 2016 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets and liabilities whose
recognition is required by NFRS, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted
by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required by NFRS, and applying NFRS
in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.
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2.6 Reporting Pronouncements

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ICAN as
effective on September 13, 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 20 September 2018
has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided

to the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting
Standard Board (ASB). Details of carve out provided are as follows:

2.6.1 NFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements
In para 19 of NFRS 10, a parent shall prepare consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances unless it is impracticable to do so.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18 to 2019-20. Accordingly, the bank has
opted the carve out.

2.6.2 NAS 17: Lease

In para 33, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term unless either:

(@) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

The carve out is optional and provided for FY 2017-18 only. Accordingly, the bank has opted the carve out.
2.6.3 NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

a) Impairment

In para 58, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any
such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment loss
unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073.
Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per
norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph
63, and shall apply paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and
advances. The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment
loss determined as per paragraph 63.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19 & 2019-20.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of
effective interest rate

In para 9, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine
reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18
Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash
flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However,
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in those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a
financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over
the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18 and 2018-19. Accordingly, the bank
has opted the carve out.

c) Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost

In para AG 93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall be
calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the
financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19 & 2019-20. Accordingly, the
bank has opted the carve out.

2.7. New Standards in issue but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been
applied. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable
when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.8. Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

2.9. Limitation of NFRS Implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available and/or it is impracticable to develop the information,
such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

3 derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value

3 financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

. investment property is measured at fair value

. the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined

benefit obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

3.2. Basis of Consolidation
a. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date i.e.
when control is transferred to the Bank. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies
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of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration
potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Bank measures goodwill at the acquisition date as;

. the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus

3 the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire, plus

3 if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the preexisting equity interest in
the acquire, less

3 the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

3 When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3 The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

3 Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Bank incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

3 Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the

contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is
accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
For each business combination, the Bank elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree

either:
. at fair value; or
. at their proportionate share of the acquire identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Bank’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based
on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Bank. The Bank controls an entity if it is exposed, or

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

The Bank reassesses whether it has control if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are combined line by line

by adding the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiary. The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated in full. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group(such as interest income
and technical fee) are eliminated in full while preparing the consolidated financial statements.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Bank derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying
amount of non-controlling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity related
to the subsidiary. Further parent’s share of components previously recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl) is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings as appropriate. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in the profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in
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the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.
Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained.

e. Special Purpose Entities

Special purpose entities (SPEs) are entities that are created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined
objectives. An SPE is consolidated if, based on an evaluation of the substance of its relationship with the
Bank and the SPE’s risks and rewards, the Bank concludes that it controls the SPE.

The following circumstances may indicate a relationship in which, in substance, the Bank controls and
consequently consolidates an SPE:

. The activities of the SPE are being conducted on behalf of the Bank according to it specific
business needs so that the Bank obtains benefits from the SPE'’s operation.

. The Bank has the decision-making powers to obtain the majority of the benefits of the activities of
the SPE or, by setting up an ‘autopilot’ mechanism, the Bank has delegated these decision-making
powers.

. The Bank has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE and therefore may be exposed
to risks incident to the activities of the SPE.

3 The Bank retains the majority of the residual or ownership risks related to the SPE or its assets in

order to obtain benefits from its activities.

f. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.3. Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, money at call & short notice and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition dates
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Bank in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.4. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

A. Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank initially
recognize loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date
that they are originated which is the date that the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond
or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Bank
commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Generally purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

B. Classification

I. Financial Assets

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on
the basis of the Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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The two classes of financial assets are as follows;

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets
measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost are
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Bank
makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be
recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes
in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Il. Financial Liabilities
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
follows;

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

C. Measurement

i. Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.



oluTeT doteTia?y dab feifdies | ©Q

ii. Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost
based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability classified as
measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset

or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

3.4.1. Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by
the Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income is recognized in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to recognize
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.4.2 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value of a
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
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Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models
where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a
financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation
technigues include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties

(if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price
—i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, thefair value of a
financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair value is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the
instrument. In other cases the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is recognized
over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or
sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost, considering the non-trading of promoter shares
up to the date of balance sheet, the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty.
Hence, these investments are recognized at cost net of impairment, if any.

3.4.3 Impairment

At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been
impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss
event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

. Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

3 When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

3 Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.

3 Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled
payments.

3 Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated

future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
specific individual financial assets.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances
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and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade
receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost

As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to
customers as well as held-to—maturity investments is impaired, and impairment losses are recognized,
only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 50 borrowers and borrowers classified as
Non performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are assessed for individual impairment test. The
recoverable value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the
borrower/past experience of the bank. Assets that are individually assessed and for which no impairment
exists are grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined by
management prudently being based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective assessment of
impairment, the bank has categorized assets into sixteen broad sectors as per NRB sector wise reporting
modality as follows:

1 Agricultural and Forest Related

2 Fishery Related

3 Mining Related

4 Agriculture, Forestry & Beverage

5 Non Food Production Related

6 Construction

7 Electricity, Gas and Water

8 Metal Products, Machinery & Electronic Equipment & Assemblage
9 Transport, Communication and Public Utilities
10 Wholesaler & Retailer

11 Finance, Insurance and Real Estate

12 Hotel or Restaurant

13 Other Services

14 Consumption Loans

15 Local Government

16 Others

For calculation of collective impairment as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39, the weighted average provision
percentage of last three years of the related sector is applied to the total amortized value of assets. The
weighted average provision used is the provision as prescribed by NRB in excess of 1%.
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If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment

loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment reserve) in other
comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. If a future write—off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the 'Income Statement’.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning
level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances
including bills purchased at 1% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft
and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives.

Policies Adopted

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and
advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

3.5 Trading Assets

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short-term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value
in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair
value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss.

3.6 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not
classified as trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes are measured at
fair value in the statement of financial position.

Considering the requirement of NAS 39 for qualification of hedge accounting and cost benefits along with
materiality, Bank has not adopted hedge accounting for certain derivatives held for risk management.

3.7 Loan to staffs

Loan to staffs has been recognized at amortised cost. The Bank has used base rate of the particular
year in which the loan is disbursed for discounting the staff loan. The difference between book value and
amortised cost is recognized as Prepaid staff cost.

3.8 Property and Equipment

a. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at
cost, if, and only if:

3 it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
3 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

. the cost of materials and direct labour;

3 any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use;

. when the Bank has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and
. Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Bank adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the property
and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.
The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the Bank. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Assets with a value of less than NPR 10,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their useful life in
the year of purchase.

b. Capital Work in Progress
Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in
progress.

c. Depreciation
Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful life as per management judgement as follows:

Useful Life (In Years)

Computer 4
Metal Furniture 5
Office Equipment 5
Vehicle 10
Wooden Furniture 5
Building 20
Leasehold Lower of 10 Years or Lease Period

d. Derecognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized
(unless on a sale & lease back).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
any.
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3.9. Intangible Assets/ Goodwill

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank, and are amortized on the
basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software
costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are
recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down
immediately.

Software is amortised on a straight line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date
that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods
is five years. Software assets with costs less than Rs. 10,000 are charged off on purchases as revenue
expenditure.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

3.10 Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired
by the Bank as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Bank holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security over the
loans and advances.

The bank has adopted a policy of writing down the fair value of Investment property to nil which could not
be sold even after elapse of 5 years from the date of assumption of such property.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii)
they are available-for-sale in their present condition; and (i) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

3.11. Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration
of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the reporting date which is expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

3.12. Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under account, current, term deposits and margin
accounts which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions
are recorded on the bank's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Bank and
represents the amount owed by the Bank to the customer.

b. Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Bank. Deposits, debt securities
issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
where the Bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The bank has not issued any debt
securities.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the
claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The bank does not have any of such
subordinated liabilities.

3.13. Provisions

The Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Bank has a present constructive or legal
obligation that can be reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
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reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

3.14. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases
relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not
recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The Bank’s revenue
comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange income, cards income, remittance
income, bancassurance commission, etc. and the bases of incomes recognition are as follows:

a. Interest Income
Interest income on available-for-sale assets and financial assets held at amortized cost shall be
recognized using the bank’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of

the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have
been derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The Bank
considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that would
be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options)
but does not consider future credit losses. As per the Carve-out Notice issued by ICAN, the calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts unless it is immaterial or impracticable
to determine reliably, between parties to the contract.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Contractual
income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognized within
in profit or loss.

b. Fees & Commission
Fees and commissions income are recognized as income on cash basis at the time of issue of Guarantee
or LC.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the
ex-dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from
other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying
classification of the equity investment.

d. Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all
realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.
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e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading
derivatives held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships and
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realized and
unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.15 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Bank’s
trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

3.16. Employees Benefits

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period):

. wages, salaries and social security contributions,
. paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

3 profit-sharing and bonuses and

3 non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Bank pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit
or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution
plan, in which both the employee and the Bank contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the
basic salary. The Bank does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual
contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past
service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
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The Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee
benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Bank recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any resulting
change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost that had not previously been recognized.

iii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Bank is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if
the Bank has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the
reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

3.17. Leases
Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term unless either:

(@) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because
of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Majority of lease agreements entered by the Banks are with the clause of normal increment of 5%-10%
p.a. which the management assumes are in line with the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

3.18. Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost,
or year-end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of
the gain or loss on the asset or liability.
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3.19. Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-
specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to

a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statement as commitments.

3.20. Share Capital and Reserves

The Bank classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets
of the Bank after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Bank and
distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, foreign
exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, staff training and
development fund, CSR reserve etc.

3.21. Earnings per share including diluted

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.22. Segment Reporting

The bank has identified the key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations that
assist the bank in decision process and to allocate the resources. It will help the management to assess
the performance of the business segments that has been identified as below. The business segments
identified are Business Banking, Trade Finance, Treasury and Others. The segment results that are
reported include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly common assets, head office expenses, and tax
assets and liabilities. All operations between the segments are conducted on pre-determined transfer
price. Treasury & International Department acts as the fund manager of the bank.
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4. SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Schedules are attached with financial statements.

5. DISCLOSURES AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

5.1 Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation between business function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Bank has set up Credit Risk Management Department (CRMD)
and Operation & Other Risk Management Department (OORMD) headed by Chief Risk Officer (CRO),

one of the most senior level positions in the Bank. The CRMD and OORMD oversees global, macro, micro
and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are
put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss the
reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management
Committee

Assets and Liability

Chief Risk Officer Committee (ALCO)

Operation and Other
Risk Management
Department

Credit Risk Management
Department

i. Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and
implement robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by
the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with the
risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the Bank. The board understands the
nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk management, including policies and
standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management
Committee and the Asset- Liabilities Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management
Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At least four meeting is
conducted on annual basis however number of meeting can be increased as per the requirement. The
committee supervise overall risk management of the Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk,
operational risk and credit risk
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ii. Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level
arising to the bank and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership
mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and
liquidity risks which arise directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies
relating to management risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible for the management of capital and establishment of,
and compliance with, policies relating to balance sheet management, including management of liquidity,
capital adequacy and structural foreign exchange and interest rate exposure and tax exposure.

The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the banks
risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies
and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior management and committees.

iii Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has appropriate internal control framework in place that
supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Bank should

be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place during expansion and
growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can
cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance
resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
control/monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively implemented the same at the Bank.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Audit department.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Bank through regular audit, special audit, information system audit, Off Site
review, AML/CFT/KYC audit, IS audit as well as Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audits
observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate
corrective measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review
and the committee issues appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the
respective department, regional offices or branches.

5.1.1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Risk
Monitoring and Reporting Framework/ have been prepared in order to mitigate/minimize the credit risk of
the Bank through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management of

Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following activities were carried out:

. Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

3 Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk Appetite,
tolerance limit mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines, Credit Policy and Credit Risk
Management Policy;
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3 Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Account Monitoring Report, Loan
Overdue Report, Loan Report, NRB reports and Margin Monitoring Reports

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors hence Overall strategy
as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is
responsible for implementing the bank’s credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring
that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in
accordance with these policies.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
The bank has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and investments at amortized cost.
In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the related financial assets.

5.1.2. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency
risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

i. Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Bank is exposed to is the discount rate for determining the fair value of
financial instruments.

iii. Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

5.1.3. Liquidity Risk

Bank recognize Market Risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused
due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign
exchange rates and commodity price fluctuation, as well as the volatilities, of those prices. While Liquidity
risk is chances of failure of a bank to meet obligations as they become due. Effective liquidity risk
management helps ensure the Bank’s ability to meet its obligations as they fall due without adversely
affecting the Bank’s financial condition and reduces the probability of developing of an adverse situation.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk

arises because of the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not
available to the Bank on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified
funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with
liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Bank has developed
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internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to
secure additional funding as required.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a undiscounted cash flow
basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo
arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

NPR. In Lacs
0 I e el e e e el R D
> 1year Total
[EVE [ EV days days [ EV days
Assets
1 Cash Balance 17,528 - - - - - - 17,528
2 Balance with Banks & Fls 88,433 - - - - - - 88,433
3 Investment in Foreign Banks 2,145 8,830 8,840 - - 2,784 - 22,598
4 Call Money - - - - - - - -
5  Government Securities - 12,732 976 1,930 - - 26,890 42,528
6  Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - - - - - - -
7 Inter Bank & FI Lending - - - - - - - -
8  Loans & Advances 32,773 7,871 34,840 42,167 58,504 41,273 206,578 424,006
9 Interest Receivable - - 3,879 - - - - 3,879

10  Reverse Repo - - = = = = - -
11 Acceptance Receivable - - - = o - R -
12 Payments under S.N. 20,21 & 22 57,035 13,913 27,688 21,760 28,412 61,636 70,530 280,974

13 Others 932 - 15 - - 3,607 57,892 62,446
Total (A) 198,846 43,345 76,237 65,858 86,917 109,299 361,890 942,392
Liabilities

14 Current Deposits 3,030 1,818 1,212 6,061 6,061 6,061 39,317 63,561

15 Saving Deposits (including call) 8,629 5178 3,452 17,259 17,259 17,259 105,373 174,408

16  Fixed Deposits 9,617 13,913 27,688 21,760 28,412 61,636 70,530 233,557

17 Debentures/Bonds - - - - - - - -

18  Borrowings 3,340 - - - - - - 3,340

Call/Short Notice - - - - - - - -
Inter-bank/Financial Institutions - -
Refinance 3,340 - - - - - - 3,340

Others - - - - - - - -

19  Other Liabilities and Provisions 1,873 - 6,194 - - 12,580 2,484 23,131
Sundry Creditors - - - - - 249 - 249

Bills Payable - - 236 - - - - 236
Interest Payable - - 85 - - - - 85
Provisions - - - - - 9,320 2,484 11,804

Others 1,873 - 5,872 - - 3,011 - 10,757

20  Acceptance Liabilities - - - - - - - -
21 Irrevocable Loan Commitment 47,417 - - - - - - 47,417
22 Letter of Credit/Guarantee 9,617 13,913 27,688 21,760 28,412 61,636 70,530 233,557
23 Repo - - - - - - - -
24 Payable under s.no.11 - - - - - - - -
25  Others 2 5,821 28,301 7,756 - 17,162 104,379 163,420
Total (B) 83,527 40,642 94,535 74,596 80,144 176,334 392,614 942,392
Net Financial Assets (A-B) 115,319 2,704  -18,298 -8,738 6,772  -67,035  -30,724 -

Cumulative Net Financial Assets 115,319 118,023 99,724 90,986 97,759 30,724 - -
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5.1.4. Operational risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the bank.
Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the Bank and is influenced by all resources,
including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Bank to carry out those
functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud, business
interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery,
inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business
practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the business supporting functions.

The Bank is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business
practices and therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a

sound position to deal effectively with those events that do occur. The actions of the board and senior
management, and policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a sound risk management
culture.

Bank seek to minimize our exposure to operational riskby use of key control standards, key control self-
assessments and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational risk
events through timely acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The Bank
shall also ensure highest level of governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct and robust
compliance to all regulatory as well as the Bank’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating procedure are crucial tools for sound risk
management. Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their effective
implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in
line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry.

5.1.5. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

I e
Hierarchy (Level) | 16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016

Fair Value through profit and loss

Financial Assets

NDF held for risk management 3 30,808,000 29,376,877 25,202,072
Other trading assets 1 93,205,732 97,238,638 -
Financial Liabilities

NDF held for risk management 3 - - -

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Financial assets
Investment securities at OCI

- Quoted equity securities 1 441,471,719 178,090,459 139,165,451
- Unquoted equity securities 8] 28,342,000 21,292,000 20,066,100
Investment in susidiaries 3 200,000,000 - -
Total 669,813,719 199,382,459 159,231,551

Financial Instruments held at amortised cost
Financial assets

Debt securities - -
Government bonds 3,999,078,894 1,824,002,714 996,388,991

Government treasury bills 297,035,315 1,950,963,025 697,981,263
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - - 870,000,000
Loan and advances to B/Fls 1,380,568,716 1,306,899,625 1,159,406,044
Loans and advances to customers 40,878,5283,752 36,178,234,959 31,291,853,606
Accounts receivable 100,002,633 32,397,883 20,173,257
Accrued Income - - -
Others 404,001 404,001 404,001

Total 46,655,613,311 41,292,902,207  35,036,207,163
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Fair value As at As at As at
Hierarchy (Level) 16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016

Financial liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Instituions - 515,750,000 -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 333,989,302 1,078,283,557 31,598,300
Deposits from customers 48,052,952,763 43,860,305,237 39,923,543,084
Borrowing -

Provisions - - -
Other liabilities 1,252,645,545 753,255,153 632,770,048

Debt securities issued -
Subordinated Liabilities - - -
Total 49,639,587,610 46,207,593,947 40,587,911,432

5.2. Capital Management

5.2.1. Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has formulated and implemented the "Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process 2017"
(ICAAP 2017) which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The ICAAP 2017 is a system of sound,
effective, and complete strategies and processes that allows the Bank to assess and maintain, ongoing
basis, the amounts, types and distribution of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover
the nature and level of risk to which the Bank is or might be exposed to.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) shall also include requirement to have robust
governance arrangements, efficient process of managing all material risks and an effective regime

for assessing and maintaining adequate and economic capital at the Bank where economic capital
(economically needed capital) refers to the amount of capital required for the Bank’s business operations
and for financing the associated risks.

ICAAP 2017 shall provide policy and procedural guidelines for the calculation of internal capital adequacy
by prescribing appropriate methodologies, techniques and procedures to assess the capital adequacy
requirements in relation to the Bank’s risk profile and effectiveness of its risk management, control
environment and strategic planning.

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the bank

in relation to strategic objectives. The management shall review and understand the nature and level of
various risks that the bank is confronting in the course of different business activities and how this risk
relates to capital levels and accordingly implement sound risk management framework specifying control
measures to tackle each risk factor.

The Bank prepares a long term 5 year’s Strategy Plan and to achieve the long term plans the Bank
prepares annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans as stipulated in the Budget Policy and strategy
Document of the Bank. To ensure that the Bank’s capital adequacy commensurate to demand of
the Bank’s capital required by the business planning, the Management and the Board prudently and
proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment, stress testing and scenarios
testing, monitoring and reporting as per the ICAAP 2017.

The Bank has followed Stress Testing Guidelines issued by the central bank in order to assess of the
vulnerability of the Bank under various stress situations typically, application of “what if” scenarios,
especially in the problematic identification of low frequency but high severity events and identifying
expected and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of large, but still plausible events
and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including impact
analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.
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A formal monitoring and reporting mechanism has been established to provide the senior management
necessary information on the risk profile, trends, and the capital requirements as per ICAAP 2017 and
Stress Testing Guidelines. Such reports are being prepared on quarterly basis and circulated to relevant
business units/departments, Risk department, ALCO meeting. Further quarterly reports are presented to
the Risk Management Committee and the Board for review and discussions.

Paid Up Capital

The structure of the share capital of the Bank is as follows:

= Authorized capital of NPR 10,000,000,000 represented by 100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR
100 each; and

= Issued capital as of Statement of Financial Position date is NPR 8,088,299,226 represented by
80,882,992 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each
. Paid up capital as of Statement of Financial Position date is NPR 8,088,299,226 represented by

80,882,992 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each

Over the years the Bank has enhanced its paid up capital, as presented in the table hereunder:

Capital (NPR. Million)

Initial Capital (partly paid up) FY 2051/52 60.00
Initial Capital (Fully Paid up) FY 2054/55 60.00
Bonus Issue (100%) FY 2056/57 120.00
Right Issue FY 2059/60 479.85
Takeover of NB Finance & Leasing Co. Ltd. FY 2064/65 74.03
150% Right Issue FY 2065/66 1,066.44
Takeover of Nepal Srilanka Merchant B.FC.L FY 2068/69 149.08
10% Bonus Issue FY 2069/70 200.94
10% Bonus Issue FY 2070/71 221.03
25% Bonus Issue FY 2071/72 607.84
32% Bonus Issue FY 2072/73 972.55
80% Right Issue FY 2073/74 3,207.30
12% Bonus Issue FY 2073/74 866.54
12% Bonus share rounding FY 2074/75 2.54
80% Right Issue* FY 2074/75 0.16
Total 8,088.30
*It is related to the right share declared in FY 2073/74 but held by court due to dispute, which is ordered by Court to be issued in FY
2074/75.

Regulatory Minimum Paid Up Capital Requirement

The commercial banks were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid
up capital of NPR 8 billion by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Bank’s paid up capital stood at
Rs.8.08 billion against the requirement of Rs. 8 billion.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and breakdown of its components

(SN Particulrs | AmountINPRMillion) _
A Paid up Capital 8,088.30
B Share Premium / Capital Reserve -
C Proposed Bonus Shares -



oluTet goreTa?T da fafdes | QO

D Statutory General Reserve 2,294.27
E Retained Earnings 941.46
F Un-audited Current Year Cumulative Profit -
G Capital Redemption Reserve -
H Other Free Reserves -
| Less: Deferred Tax Assets 22.31
J Less: Intangible Assets -
K Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 200.00
L Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized =
M Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending 65.32

Core (Tier-1) Capital 11,036.41

ii. Tier 2 capital and breakdown of its components

A General Loan Loss Provision 488.11
B Exchange Equalization Reserve 65.98
G Investment Adjustment Reserve 17.93
D Other Reserves 20.48

Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 592.49

iv. Deductions from capital

The Bank’s investment in Nepal Bangladesh Capital Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, NPR 200,000,000
and Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending of Rs 65,320,308 has been
deducted from the core capital.

v. Total qualifying capital

A Core Capital 11,036.41
B Supplementary Capital 592.49
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 11,628.90

vii. Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital Adequacy Ratio of the bank as at 16 July 2018 stood at 14.03%.

viii. Summary of Bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable

The Bank prepares a long term 5 year’s Strategy Plan and to achieve the long term plans the Bank
prepares annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans as stipulated in the Budget Policy and strategy
Document of the Bank. To ensure that the Bank’s capital adequacy commensurate to demand of
the Bank’s capital required by the business planning, the Management and the Board prudently and
proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment, stress testing and scenarios
testing, monitoring and reporting as per the ICAAP 2017.

The Bank has also formulated and implemented “Stress Testing Guidelines 2015” in order to assess of
the vulnerability of the Bank under various stress situations typically, application of “what if” scenarios,
especially in the problematic identification of low frequency but high severity events and identifying
expected and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of large, but still plausible events
and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including impact
analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.
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A formal monitoring and reporting mechanism has been established to provide the senior management
necessary information on the risk profile, trends, and the capital requirements as per ICAAP 2017 and
Stress Testing Guidelines 2015. Such reports are being prepared on quarterly basis and circulated

to relevant departments, Risk Department, and tabled in Assets Liability Committee (ALCO) meeting.
Further quarterly reports are presented to the Risk Management Committee and the Board for review and
discussions.

ix. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Bank has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR. 100
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Bank, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Bank after distribution

of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

. . Amount (NPR
Risk Weighted Exposure "
Million)

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 75,668.84
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 3,381.98
© Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 135.08
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 5 % of gross income. 1,352.20
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE 2,375.58
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 82,913.68

5.2.3. Compliance with external requirement

The commercial banks were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid
up capital of NPR 8 billion by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Bank’s paid up capital stood at
NPR 8.09 billion against the requirement of NPR 8 billion.
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5.3. Segment Analysis

5.3.1. General Information

Reportable Segments

Business segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the target customer profile,
the nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns, the organization structure, the internal
business reporting system. The Bank operates in the following segments:

a) Business Banking

The loans provided to all customers except for trade finance purpose are classified under Corporate
Banking. The interest income and other fee incomes generated out of such loans are revenue items of this
segment. Expenses of this segment comprises of interest expenses on deposits used for providing loans,
personnel expenses and operating expenses as well as provision for loss created for such loans.

b) Trade Finance

The loans provided for the purpose of import trade facilitation which are created after settlement of non-
funded obligations of the bank such as Letter of Credit & Bank Guarantee are classified under Trade
Finance segment. The interest income, fee incomes generated out of such loans, commission earned
from issuance of LC & Bank Guarantees are revenue items of this segment. Expenses of this segment
comprises of interest expenses on deposits used for providing such loans, pro-rated personnel expenses
as well as operating expenses for such loans.

c) Treasury

The balance lying with the banks invested in governmental bonds, treasury bills, placements, forex trading
and shares of other Organizations come under this segment. The interest income of bonds and bills,
forex gains, dividend income are revenue items of this segment. Expenses of this segment comprises of
interest expenses on deposits used for making investments, forex losses, pro-rated personnel expenses
and operating expenses as well as provision for loss created for such investments.

d) Others

All other revenues and expenses which cannot be classified to the above-mentioned segments fall under
this segment. The income from sale of assets, other fees and commission are revenue items of this
segment. Un-attributable personnel expenses, operating expenses and written off assets are expense
items of this segment.

Business Banking, Trade Finance and Treasury comprise majority of bank’s total revenue. Hence, these
operations are treated as reportable segments and the remaining are classified under other segment.



oluTet dorete?T da fafdes | 909

cr8'/29'e9r el
€0c' L6V 168'S

00v' 191 'vE

0S9'|15°€6
16Y'66E°E )
ve0'cee' e
95€'20.'0v
08€'6€6'19
LZL'SIE'0le
LLL'Gle0le
91qejsodal
A@jesadas
j0U-SI3Y1Q

HdN urjunowy

20€'686'729°C
EVELYe LES LL

66¢'000'65

L9E'V0S 191
L61'8EC LI
v0E'V15'€22
GE8'6LL'0E
6ELVE9'ESC
6E8'L6E'9L L

6E8'H6E9Lt

Ainseau)

GG0'Ge9'eeL’C
260'c02'CH
0v6'6v8v0 L

208'010'.8¢
G08'+90'8¢

290'892'E |
L9S'V9L°LIe
629'cer 06
16G'80Y°26S

165801265

€9/'256'250'8Y
G0€°002'586'8€
vv92e0'vL L
€€1°G0'99¢

018‘0€z'8e.
6862856
LSV'€8L'259" |
6v1'618'89L°C
909°209'1e8' v
60c'CH'0SH

60CCLy'0GH

Bbunjueg
ssauisng

sjuawbag a)qerioday

£06'69S'171'G9
£06'69G"1v71'G9
9e.'Ge2'981
€.,'9v0'v9Y

629°',G2'0LC'}
c8v'e8e'eL

Lv8'26.'010°C
£06'018'9GV'€
¥G.'809°L9V'G
018°22SvEL L

018°2eGvEL't

junowy 1e30]

salIger Juswbeg

sjessy Juswbag

S19SSY JO Jusulieduw|
uolexe| 1o} UoISIAOId
:sW8)l Yseo-uou [eusiewl JayiQ

poyiaw Alinba Buisn 10} pajunodoe $81e100sse JO SSO| Jo Jjoid 8yl ul 1salaiul sAinug

(Clen)ITICTNBIENTIE
uoIeZIIoWY pue uolelosideq
anusAsy 1saJelu| 1oN

sesuadx] 1seuely|
anuaAay 1sala)u|
anuansy 19N

SonuaAsYy E@E@mwu_mﬁc_

SJawolsn) [eulalxg WOl senusAay

sJejnoijed

:M0)9q UaAIb s1 gL0z AInr 91 papud Jeak ay) Joj buiniodaa yuswbag

—_ =
= = =
c o c =
<

O o

Q O

Tes



QOR | oiureT daretiaR db foifdies

5.3.3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of operations that assists the
Management Committee of the bank in decision making process and to allocate the resources. It will help
the management to assess the performance of the business segments.

Basis of segmentation:

1. Segment Assets/Segment Liabilities Explanations:

a. Business Banking segmental assets includes all loan and advances provided to the customers
except Trade financing such as Trust Receipt Loan and other funded exposure created in lieu of
settlement of non-funded obligations. Such exceptions to Business banking qualifies under Trade
Finance Segment. Segmental liabilities under Business Banking is total deposit from customers.

b. Treasury segment assets includes Balance with NRB/other Fl, Interbank Placements, investment in
securities and other organized institutions' shares, Derivatives assets, whereas segment liabilities
comprieses Derivative liabilities, due from central bank and so on which are related to treasury
functions.

G All other unallocated assets and liabilities have been presented under Others Segment consisting;
but not limited to Share capital, reserve, retained earning, property and equipment, intangible
assets, investmetn properties, tax assets and liabilities, cash and cash equivalents.

2. Interest Revenue Explanations:

a. Interest income on Business Banking Segment=% interest income on total loan portfolio*Business
Banking Loan portfolio

b. Interest income on Trade Finance Segment=% interest income on total loan portfolio*Trade
Finance Loan portfolio

©. Interest income of Treasury segment= Interest income on placement and investment securities

d. Others comprises interest income from staff loan and other unattributable interest income.

w

. Interest Expenses Explanations:

Interest expenses on Business Banking Segment, Trade Finance & Others is calculated on the
basis of % interest income generated from utilization of fund.

b. Interest expenses on Treasury segment consists of Interest expenses on borrowing from central
bank and interbank borrowing/placements.

o

. Revenue from External Customers Explanations:

Business Banking Segment : Loan administration fee and service fee

Trade Finance Segment : Commission of LC & commission on Guarantee

Treasury segment : Forex transaction fee, trading gain, revaluation gain, remittance fee, swift fee,
gain on investment securities, dividend income, gain on bullion business,

Others Segment : All other fee/revenue from external customers not falling under above three
segments.

o T A

o

5. There is no any identifiable inter-segment revenue in absence of transfer pricing policy in the bank

6. Depreciation and amortizations are allocated between the segments on the basis of Net Revenue as
reported under "c" in above table

7. Segment Profit/(loss) are reported on the basis of total segmental revenue as reported under "c" plus "f"
in above table

8. Provision for taxation allocated on the basis of segmental profit/(loss) as reported under "h".

9. Impairment of assets is pro-rated between the segment on the basis of total loan portfolio under each
segment.
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5.3.4. Reconciliation of reportable, segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Total Revenues for reportable segments
Other revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues

2,913,778,462
231,547,195

Entity's revenues

3,145,325,657

Profit or Loss

Total Profit or Loss for reportable segments
Other Profit or Loss

Elimination of intersegment profits
Unallocated amounts

1,606,631,353
127,673,050

Profit before income Tax

1,734,304,402

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Other assets

Unallocated amounts

59,250,072,704
5,891,497,203

Entity's assets

Liabilities

Total Liabilities for reportable segments
Other Liabilities

Unallocated Liabilities

65,141,569,907

51,677,942,065
13,463,627,842

Entity's Liabilities

65,141,569,907

5.3.5. Information about product and services

Amount in NPR

a Loans and advances portfolio 5,302,447,444
b  Forex transactions 176,391,839
¢ Investment portfolio 164,187,731
d Interbank lending/placements 89,446,408
e Other-not seperately reportable 272,254,550
f  Letter of Credit and Guarantees 597,408,591
5.3.6. Information about geographical areas
a. Domestic Amount NPR.
Province 1 668,572,255
Province 2 669,414,536
Province 3 4,244.152,882
Province 4 129,123,174
Province 5 614,038,649
Province 6 104,431,980
Province 7 172,403,088
b. Foreign -
Total 6,602,136,563

5.3.7 Information about major customers

Revenue from single customer doesn’t exceed 10% of total revenue.
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5.4. Share Options and Share based Payment
The Bank does not have a policy for share options to its employees. Similarly, during the year the Bank
has not made any payments or settlements by issuing new shares.

5.5. Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

5.5.1. Contingent liabilities

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such
as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank's transaction banking
business for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are
included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of
customers to customs, for bids or offers.

5.5.2. Commitments

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in
the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the
Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial
statement as commitments.

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
NPR. NPR.
1

Claims on Institution but not accepted by the institution

2 Letters of Credit (full amount) 3,230,003,610 2,250,309,332
a. Less than 6 months maturity 3,171,477,134 2,210,024,769
b. More than 6 months maturity 58,526,476 40,284,563
8 Rediscounted Bills - -
Unmatured Guarantees/Bonds 25,015,851,286 21,071,484,425
a. Bids Bonds 5,083,720,000 4,953,929,704
b. Performance Bonds 19,932,131,286 16,117,554,721

c. Other Guarantees/Bonds - -

5 Unpaid Shares in Investment - -
6 Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities = =
7 Bills under Collection 370,628,681 119,717,768
8 Acceptance and Endorsements 1,462,373,671 667,855,015
9 Underwriting Commitments - -
10  Irrevocable Loan Commitments 4,741,725,955 4,404,449,362
11 Counter Guarantee of Internationally Rated Banks - -
12 Advance Payment Guarantee 17,154,809,010 14,284,456,316
13  Financial Guarantee - -
14 Contingent Liabilities on Income Tax* 140,557,967 8,200,000
15 Others 18,000,000 18,000,000
Total 52,133,950,180 42,824,472,218

*Additional Tax liability was imposed by Inland revenue Department for FY 2060/61 against which Bank has
appeal in the Revenue Tribunal, Kathmandu.

Explanatory Notes

The Bank seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to regulatory
actions and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can be material to
the bank.
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In addition to these matters, the Bank may receive legal claims against it in the normal course of business.
The Bank considers none of these claims as material. Where appropriate, the bank recognizes a
provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying economic
benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation(s).

5.6. Related Party Disclosures
5.6.1. Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel of the Bank including members of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive
Officer and other executive level staffs of the Bank, as follows:

Mr. Jalal Ahmed - Chairman

Mr. Indra Bahadur Thapa - Director

Mr. Mukunda Nath Dhungel - Director

Mr. Madhab Prasad Neupane - Professional Director

Mr. Mohammad Shah Alam Sarwar - Director

Mr. Deepak Karki - Director

Ms. Quamrun Naher Ahmed - Director

Mr. Gyanendra Prasad Dhungana - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zabid Igbal - Deputy Chief Executive Officer/Chief Risk Officer
Mr. Surendra Bhushan Shrestha - Deputy Chief Executive Officer/Chief Finance Officer
Mr. Raghu Krishna Shrestha - Chief Credit Officer

Mrs. Salonika Singh - Chief Business Officer

Mr. Suresh Devkota - Chief Operating Officer

5.6.2 Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and Restricted Lending

By the virtue of the merger with then Nepal Srilanka Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd. (NSLMBFL) in
fiscal year 2067/068, some loans (total outstanding principal value NRs. 65.32 million as on 16 July, 2018)
have been transferred to the bank as restricted lending (loans related with shareholders holding more
than 0.5% holding, loans related with promoters group etc). These are deductible items from core capital
in capital adequacy calculation table. Following are the detail of those lending:

Name of the Party NPR. ('000)

Geeta Shrestha 20,931
Rameshwor Prasad Shrestha 20,167
Mani Pandey 20,905
Krishna Prasad Bhandari 3,317
Total 65,320

5.6.3 Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:
The Bank has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

5.6.4 Transaction with Board of Director of the Bank

Amount in NPR.
Nature of Transaction
Meeting Allowances (including committee meeting fee) 2,655,000

Meeting Expenses, Telephone, Mobile & Newspapers/Magazines 197,070
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5.6.5 Remuneration and facilities to Chief Executive Officer of the Bank

Amount in NPR

a) Salary 12,855,000.00
b) Annual Leaves including sick leave Yes
c) Bonus as per Bonus Act Yes
d) Gratuity, Provident Fund, Medical Benefit Yes
e) Dashain and Uniform Allowances Yes

In addition to the above, a vehicle has been provided to the Chief Executive Officer as per the terms of his
appointment.

5.6.6. Transactions with substantial shareholder

The bank has made foreign placement worth NPR.1,535.80 Million with IFIC Bank Ltd., Dhaka,
Bangladesh, as of Ashadh End 2075 which is a substantial shareholder of the bank holding 40.91% equity
shares in the paid up capital of the bank.

5.6.7. Management and Technical Service Agreement (TSA)

The bank has entered into Management & Technical Services Agreement with IFIC Bank Ltd., Dhaka,
Bangladesh on 18" October, 2015 for a period of five years starting from October 2015, for the purpose of
advising, sharing based practices and process up-gradation of the bank and other matters related thereto
and the same has been approved from Nepal Rastra Bank.

During the year the bank has paid an amount of USD 150,000 as Technical Service Fee for the said
agreement to IFIC Bank Ltd. as per the clause 3(a) of the agreement.

5.6.8. Transaction with Subsidiaries

The intra-group related figures have been excluded for presentation of the financial statement of the
Group which includes the current deposit of subsidiary held at parent company amounting NPR.
199,592,120 as well as Investment in Subsidiary of parent company amounting NPR. 200,000,000 as at
Ashadh end 2075.

The intra-group related figures have been excluded for presentation of the financial statement of the
Group.

5.7. Merger and Acquisition
There are no merger or acquisitions transaction during the year.

5.8 Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities

The Bank has one subsidiary as at 16 July 2018, Nepal Bangladesh Capital Limited which is consolidated
for the year ended 16 July 2018. There are no such entities which are required to be consolidated but not
done during the year.

5.9 Events after reporting date

The Bank monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible
financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2018 till the signing of this financial
statement on 29" November 2018.
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5.10. First Time Adoption reconciliations and disclosures
NFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of Nepal Financials Reporting Standards) provides a suitable starting point
for accounting in accordance with NFRS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters.

The Bank has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan, 2073

(16 July 2016) (the transition date) by:

a recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,

b.  not recognizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS,

© reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to NFRS as
required under NFRS, and

d. applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

5.10.1. Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past

Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal
Accounting Standards and directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank) and the adoption of NFRS has been
disclosed in the respective segments, including the impact.
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Explanatory Notes:

a) Under previous GAAR Loan Loss Provision was provided as per the directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.
Under NFRS, the Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

However as per the carve out given by NRB/ ASB higher of loan loss provision as per GAAP or impairment
calculated as per NFRS is eligible for charging. The impact on equity has been explained below:

Asat01.04.2073 | Asat31.03.2074 | Asat32.03.2075

Total Impairment as per NFRS (i) 538,527,008 519,564,720 610,464,076
Loan Loss Provision as per NRB Directive (i) 553,128,179 580,160,341 879,012,358
Higher of (i) or (ii) 553,128,179 580,160,341 879,012,358

Net Increase/Decrease in Equity - = =

b) Under previous GAAPR, investments were measured at cost less diminution in value. Under NFRS,
these financial assets have been classified as financial assets carried at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). On the date of transition to NFRS, these financial assets have been
measured at their fair value which is higher than the cost as per previous GAAR resulting in an increase in
the carrying amount as explained in the table below. These changes do not affect profit before tax or total
profit for the year ended 16 July 2016, 15 July 2017 and 16 July 2018 because the changes in fair value
have been recognised under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

As at 01.04.2073 | As at 31.03.2074 | As at 32.03.2075

Increase/ (Decrease) in carrying amount due to fair value 44,277,607 (7,215,052) 136,684,160
Already recognised in books of account - 30,994,325 25,943,789
Deferred tax impact on the increased amount (13,283,282) 2,164,516 (41,005,248)
Net increment in total equity 30,994,325 25,943,789 121,622,701

c) Under previous GAAR Non Banking Assets (NBA) were recognised as per Directives of Nepal Rastra
Bank and 100% provision were made. Under NFRS, these NBA have been classified as Investment property
and measured at fair value. On the date of transition to NFRS, provision as per the Directives of NRB has
been reversed. Further changes in Fair value of NBA has been adjusted as shown in the table below.

As at 01.04.2073 | As at 31.03.2074 | As at 32.03.2075

Increase in carrying amount due to reversal of provision on NBA 88,891,378 100,743,998 156,929,330
Change in fair value of NBA (61,381,374) (77,545,975) (69,101,475)
Net increment in total equity 27,510,004 23,198,023 87,827,855

d) Under interest suspense of FY 2016/17 and 2015/16 has been recognized as income while restating
under NFRS, hence deferred tax liability has been created. In FY 2017/18 tax has been calculated on the
basis of NFRS income, thus deferred tax liability has been settled.

e) Under previous GAAP Interest income on Loans and Advances was recognized on cash basis as per
Directive 4 of Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB). Under NFRS, Interest income is recognised on accrual basis
using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method hence increasing the equity. Accordingly accrued interest is
booked as income thereby increasing equity.

f) The conditions under NFRS were not met to provide for Investments, hence the loss provision created
as per the requirement of Unified NRB Directives has been reversed and added back to the retained
earnings resulting increase in equity.

g) Under previous GAAP cash dividends on equity shares recommended by the board of directors
after the end of the reporting period but before the financial statements were approved for issue were
recognised in the financial statements as a liability. Under NFRS, such cash dividends are recognised
when declared by the members in a general meeting. The effect of this change is an increase in total
equity, but this does not affect profit before tax and total profit for the respective years.
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As at As at As at
Particulars
01.04.2073 31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Dividend of current year added back to Reserves (Non-Adjusting Event) 51,186,716 273,644,166
Net Increase in Equity 51,186,716 273,644,166 -

h) Bonus is calculated on the basis of profit before bonus and tax. Since the profit under NFRS is higher
than the previous GAAP, bonus payable to employees under NFRS is also higher resulting in decrease in

equity.

i) For FY 2074/75 tax is calculated as per NFRS profit. Profit before tax under NFRS is higher than the
previous GAAP hence tax payable under NFRS is higher resulting in decrease in equity

5.10.3 Reconciliation of profit or loss

Amount in NPR

;
% . 31.03.2074 32.03.2075
. So -

o Profit/(Loss) for the year Profit/(Loss) for the year
Previous GAAP 1,200,381,901 1,020,403,287
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income a 17,091,178 42,744,716
Impairment of loan and advances - -
ggﬁloyees benefit amortisation under staff b (10,000,969) (21,304,444)
Defined benefit obligation of employee © 23,450,911 23,640,668

Operating lease expense = _
Amortisation expense of debt securities - -
Other operating income = _

Interest expense - -
Depreciation & Amortisation - -
Other
Provision on investment adjusted d (24,779,885) 22,069,163
NBA provision adjusted e (4,311,981) 64,629,832
Deferred tax adjustment f (2,127,063) 16,776,537
Increase in staff bonus g (11,979,995)
Increase in current tax h - (12,944,488)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss (677,810) 123,631,989
Profit or loss under NFRSs 1,199,704,091 1,144,035,276
Other Comprehensive Income i (28,501,447) 72,038,244
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 1,171,202,644 1,216,073,520

Explanatory Notes:

a) Under previous GAAR Interest income on Loans and Advances was recognized on cash basis as

per Directive 4 of Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB). Under NFRS, Interest income is recognised on accrual
basis using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. Accordingly accrued interest on loans and advances is
recognized as income which subsequently increases profit.

Under NFRS the amortization of prepaid staff cost is recognized as finance cost of staff under NFRS and
subsequently the same amount is booked as interest income on loans and advances to staff thereby
increasing interest income and profit.



ATt doreTRY d RS | 999

For the year ended 31.03.2074 | For the year ended 32.03.2075

Accrued interest on loans recognized as income 7,090,208 21,440,272
Interest income on loans & advances to staff 10,000,969 21,304,444
Total 17,091,178 42,744,716

b) Under NFRS the amortization of prepaid staff cost is recognized as finance cost of staff under NFRS
thereby decreasing profit.

¢) Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability/ asset which is recognised in Other Comprehensive income (OCl). Consequently, the tax effect of
the same is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under NFRS instead of profit or loss.
The bank has booked Gratuity expenses as per Actuarial valuation report under previous GAAP. Hence
actuarial gains/losses is only re-classified by transferring from profit or loss to OCI.

d) The conditions under NFRS were not met to provide for Investments hence the loss provision created
as per the requirement of Unified NRB Directives has been reversed.

e) The conditions under NFRS were not met to provide for Non Banking Assets hence the loss provision
created as per the requirement of Unified NRB Directives has been reversed. Further Non Banking Assets
are categorized under Investment Property and measured at fair value. Hence the changes in fair value
has been adjusted.

| Particulars | Forthe year ended 31.03.2074 | For the year ended 32.03.2075

NBA provision reversed 12,794,671 65,198,332
Change in fair value of NBA (17,106,652) (568,500)
Total (4,311,981) 64,629,832

f) The impact in deferred tax expense/ income is due to the deferred tax liablility booked for Interest
suspense.

g) For FY 2074/75 Profit before bonus & tax under NFRS is higher than that of Previous GAAP hence staff
bonus provision is also higher thereby decreasing profit.

h) For FY 2074/75 tax is calculated as per NFRS profit. Profit before tax under NFRS is higher than the
previous GAAP hence tax payable under NFRS is higher resulting into higher current tax expense thereby
decreasing profit.

i) Under previous GAAP, investments were measured at cost less diminution in value. Under NFRS,

these financial assets have been classified as financial assets carried at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). These financial assets have been measured at their fair value which is
higher than the cost as per previous GAAP and the changes in fair value is charged to OCI.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
/ asset which is recognised in Other Comprehensive income (OCl). Consequently, the tax effect of the
same is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under NFRS instead of profit or loss.

The bank has booked Gratuity expenses as per Actuarial valuation report under previous GAAP. Hence
actuarial gains/losses is only re-classified by transferring from profit or loss to OCI.

The effect of these items in Other Comprehensive Income is explained below:

For the year ended 31.03.2074 | For the year ended 32.03.2075

Increase in fair value of investment (7,215,052) 136,684,160
Deferred tax on change in fair value of investment 2,164,516 (41,005,248)
Actuarial gains/(losses) (23,450,911) (23,640,668)

Total (28,501,447) 72,038,244
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Explanatory Notes:

a) Under NFRS interest accrued on loans and advances to customers is added to the loans and
advances. Further staff loans is also categorized as loans and advances to customers hence the
amortization of staff loans is also adjusted in the same head.

Particulars As at 01.04.2073 As at 31.03.2074 As at 32.03.2075
Interest accrued 48,831,581 55,921,790 77,362,062
Amortisation of staff loan (174,143,779) (198,067,231) (282,188,361)
Loans to BFls reclassified (1,159,406,044) (1,306,899,625) (1,380,568,716)
Total (1,284,718,242) (1,449,045,066) (1,585,395,015)

b) The conditions under NFRS were not met to provide for Investments, hence the loss provision created
as per the requirement of Unified NRB Directives has been reversed and investment is measured at fair

value.
Reversal of provision on investment 24,860,600 75,716 22,144,878
Increase in fair value of investment 44,277,607 37,062,555 173,746,715
Total 69,138,207 37,138,271 195,891,593

c) For FY 2074/75 tax is calculated as per NFRS profit. Profit before tax under NFRS is higher than the
previous GAAP and Current tax asset / liability is adjusted for the same.

d) Under previous GAAP, Non Banking Assets (NBA) were recognised as per Directives of Nepal Rastra
Bank and 100% provision was made. Under NFRS, NBA has been classified as Investment property and
measured at fair value. Any change in fair value is charged to profit or loss. Provision as per the Directives
of NRB has been reversed.

[ Particulars | Asat01.04.2073 | Asat31.03.2074 | Asat32.03.2075

Reversal of provision on non banking assets 88,891,378 100,743,998 156,929,330
Change in fair value of NBA (61,381,374) (77,545,975) (69,101,475)
Total 27,510,004 23,198,023 87,827,855

e) Under NFRS interest suspense is reversed and interest income is booked on accrual basis which
creates deferred tax liability in FY 2016/17 & 2015/16. Further deferred tax liability is booked for increase
in fair value of investments available for sale and its effect is given in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl).
The effect of these items is given to DTA/ (DTL) as follows:

[ Particulars | Asat01.04.2073 | Asat31.03.2074 | As at 32.03.2075

Interest Suspense (14,649,474) (16,776,537)
Available for sale investments (13,283,282) (11,118,767) (52,124,015)
Total (27,932,756) (27,895,304) (52,124,015)

f) Under NFRS staff loan provided at subsidized interest rate is measured at amortised cost using
prevailing market interest rate. The bank has used base rate as on balance sheet date to discount the
staff loans. The difference between the carrying amount and amortised cost is recognized as prepaid staff
cost.

g) Under NFRS interest payable on customer deposits has been added to deposits from customers.

h) Under previous GAAP, cash/stock dividends on equity shares recommended by the board of directors
after the end of the reporting period but before the financial statements approved for issue were
recognised in the financial statements as a liability. Under NFRS, such dividends are recognised when
declared by the members in a general meeting only. Further interest payable on customer deposits has
been reclassified to deposits from customers.
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As at 01.04.2073 | As at 31.03.2074 | As at 32.03.2075

Dividend of current year added back to Reserves (Non- (51,186,716) (273,644,166)

Adjusting Event)

Interest payable on deposits from customers (49,309,091) (147,111,498) (58,159,764)
Total (100,495,807) (420,755,664) (58,159,764)

i) Under previous GAAP, bonus shares to be issued to equity shareholders recommended by the Board
of Directors after the end of the reporting period but before the financial statements were approved for
issue were recognised in the financial statements as Share capital. Under NFRS, such bonus shares are
recognised when declared by the members in a general meeting only. Hence bonus share proposed for

current year is written back.

j) The effect of all the adjustments in Other Comprehensive Income is given to Reserves.

Increase in fair value of investment 44,277,607 37,062,555 173,746,71 5

Deferred tax on change in fair value of investment (13,283,282) (11,118,767) (52,124,015)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) (890,933) (24,341,844) (47,982,512)
Transfer of Deferred tax reserves to Retained earnings (67,557,713) - -
Total (37,454,321) 1,601,945 73,640,189
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Explanatory Notes:

a) Under previous GAAR Interest income on Loans and Advances was recognized on cash basis as per
Directive 4 of Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB). Under NFRS, Interest income is recognised on accrual basis
using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method. Accordingly accrued interest on loans and advances has been
recognized as income thereby increasing profit.

Under NFRS the amortization of prepaid staff cost is recognized as finance cost of staff under NFRS and
subsequently the same amount is booked as interest income on loans and advances to staff thereby
increasing interest income and profit.

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Accrued interest on loans & advances recognized as income 7,090,208 35,236,720
Interest income on loans & advances to staff 10,000,969 21,304,444
Total 17,091,177 56,541,164

b) Under previous GAAP change in fair value of trading assets was booked as Other operating income in
FY 2017/18 which is booked as Net trading income under NFRS.

c) Non banking assets are classified as Investment property under NFRS and measured at fair value. The
change in fair value of NBA is booked under Operating income. Further change in fair value of trading
assets has been reclassified to Net trading income under NFRS.

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Change in fair value of NBA 16,164,601 8,444,500
Change in fair value of trading assets - 27,777,403
Total 16,164,601 36,221,903

d) Under previous GAAP, Loan Loss Provision were provided as per the directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.
Under NFRS, the Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

However as per the carve out given by NRB/ ASB higher of loan loss provision as per GAAP or impairment
calculated as per NFRS is eligible for charging.

Further the conditions under NFRS were not met to provide for Investments and Non Banking Assets
hence the loss provision created as per the requirement of Unified NRB Directives has been reversed.
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The effect of above items has been explained below:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Total Impairment as per NFRS (i) 519,564,720 610,464,076
Loan Loss Provision as per NRB Directive (ii) 580,160,341 879,012,358
Higher of (i) or (i) 580,160,341 879,012,358
Sub total - -
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Provision for investment, net of write back reversed 24,779,855 (22,069,163)
Provision on NBA, net of write back reversed (11,852,620) (56,185,332)
Interest receivable on NBA

Sub total 12,927,235 (78,254,495)
Total 12,927,235 (78,254,495)

e) Under NFRS the amortization of prepaid staff cost is recognized as finance cost of staff under NFRS
and subsequently the same amount is booked as interest income on loans and advances to staff.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
/ asset which is recognised in Other Comprehensive income (OCI). Consequently, the tax effect of the
same is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under NFRS instead of profit or loss.

The bank has booked Gratuity expenses as per Actuarial valuation report under previous GAAP. Hence
actuarial gains/losses is only re-classified transferring from profit or loss to OCI.

Further for FY 2074/75 Profit before bonus & tax under NFRS is higher than that of Previous GAAP hence
staff bonus provision is also higher.

The effect of above items has been explained below:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Finance cost of staff under NFRS 10,000,969 21,304,444
Actuarial gains/losses transferred to OCI (23,450,911) (23,640,668)
Increase in staff bonus under NFRS - 11,979,994
Total (13,449,942) 9,643,770

f) Under previous GAAP change in fair value of trading assets was booked as Non Operating expense
and Gain on disposal of trading assets was booked under Other Operating income which is booked as
Net trading income under NFRS in FY 2016/17.

g) For FY 2074/75 tax is calculated as per NFRS profit. Profit before tax under NFRS is higher than the
previous GAAP, hence tax payable under NFRS is higher resulting into higher current tax expense thereby
decreasing profit.

h) The impact in deferred tax expense/ income is due to the deferred tax liability booked for Interest
suspense for FY 2016/17 & 2015/16.

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Deferred tax expense/(income) as per NFRS 5,121,431 (28,673,679)
Deferred tax (expense)/income as per GAAP (2,994,368) 11,897,142
Total 2,127,063 (16,776,537)

i) Under previous GAAR investments were measured at cost less diminution in value. Under NFRS,
these financial assets have been classified as financial assets carried at Fair Value through Other
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Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). These financial assets have been measured at their fair value which is
higher than the cost as per previous GAAP and the changes in fair value is charged to OCI.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
/ asset which is recognised in Other Comprehensive income (OCl). Consequently, the tax effect of the
same is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under NFRS instead of profit or loss.

The bank has booked Gratuity expenses as per Actuarial valuation report under previous GAAP. Hence
actuarial gains/losses is only re-classified by transferring from profit or loss to OCI.

The effect of these items in Other Comprehensive Income is explained below:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Increase in fair value of investment (7,215,052) 136,684,160
Deferred tax on change in fair value of investment 2,164,516 (41,005,248)
Actuarial gains/(losses) (23,450,911) (23,640,668)

Total (28,501,447) 72,038,244
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Explanatory Notes:
a) The following items are re-classified in cash flow from Operating activities:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (2,110,252,970) 2,088,837,251
Placement with bank and financial institutions (1,520,002,322) 1,133,497,103
Other trading assets (97,238,638) 4,032,906
Due to bank and financial institutions 515,750,000 (515,750,000)
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 1,046,685,257 (744,294,255)
Total (2,165,058,673) 1,966,323,005

b) The following items are re-classified in cash flow from Investing activities:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Placement with bank and financial institutions 1,520,002,322 (1,133,497,103)
Other trading assets 97,238,638 (4,032,906)
Total 1,617,240,960 (1,137,530,009)

c) The following items are re-classified in cash flow from Financing activities:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075

Due to Bank and Financial Instituions (515,750,000) 515,750,000
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (1,046,685,257) 744,294,255
Total (1,562,435,257) 1,260,044,255

d) The following items are re-classified in Cash and cash equivalents:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2074 32.03.2075
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (6,868,710,457) (8,978,963,427)
Total (6,868,710,457) (8,978,963,427)

6. OTHER EXPLANATORY NOTES

6.1. Impairment

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and
advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73

LLP as per NRB Directives (a) 879,012,358 580,160,341 553,128,179
Individual Impairment as per NFRS 328,443,327 263,315,049 312,772,848
Collective Impairment as per NFRS 282,020,749 256,249,671 225,754,160
Total Impairment as per NFRS (b) 610,464,076 519,564,720 538,527,008
Charged to P&L (Higher of a & b) 879,012,358 580,160,341 553,128,179

6.2. Investment Properties/ Non-Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown under investment property. It has been recognized at lower
of fair value or amount due at the time of assumption of NBA. Previously 100% provision was made
against NBA as per NRB requirement. The bank has now adopted a policy of writing down the fair
value of Investment property to nil which could not be sold even after elapse of 5 years from the date of
assumption of such property. The details of book value of NBA is presented hereunder:
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6.3. Accrued Interest on loan

Previously the bank recognized interest income on Cash basis as per requirement of NRB directives.
However under NFRS interest income is recognized on accrual basis. Accordingly the Interest Suspense
is recognized as income. However interest receivable on some restricted loans which is assumed to

be irrecoverable in the foreseeable future has not been recognized as income. The details of which is
presented below:

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73

Interest suspense 327,725,595 266,109,064 225,796,736
Assumed to irrecoverable 250,363,533 210,187,274 176,965,155
Recognised as income 77,362,062 55,921,790 48,831,581

6.4. Amortisation of staff loan
The Bank has recognized staff loan at amortised cost. The details of amortization pertaining to respective
years have been summarized below.

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73

Book value of Staff loan 903,253,815 698,858,896 594,341,032
Prepaid staff cost 282,188,361 198,067,231 174,143,779
Amortised cost of Staff loan 621,065,454 500,791,665 420,197,252

6.5. Earnings per share

The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders
for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant
period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

Particulars
16-Jul-18 15-Jul-17

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a 1,144,035,276 1,199,704,091
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in computing Nos. 7,653,679,103 5,129,134,990
basic earnings per share (b)

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each (a/b) Rs 14.95 23.39

As there is no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and
diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.

6.6. Proposed Distribution (Cash Dividend)
The Board of directors in its meeting dated 29" November 2018 has passed a resolution recommending
for distribution of cash dividend of 10.563% (including Dividend Tax) of paid up capital as at 16 July 2018.

As at As at As at
16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016

Cash Dividend Declared 851,399,919 273,644,166 51,186,716
Bonus Shares 866,539,860 972,547,600
Total 851,399,919 1,140,184,026 1,023,734,316

6.7. Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years amounts to as follows.

) As at As at As at
Particulars
16 July 2018 15 July 2017 16 July 2016

Not collected for more than 5 years 1,284,184 1,284,484 1,284,934
Not collected up to 5 years 205,852,338 60,672,594 72,096,729
Total 207,136,522 61,957,078 73,381,663
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6.8. Non-performing assets

The Banks’ non-performing assets ratio stood at 1.13% as at balance sheet date. The total non-
performing assets as at balance sheet date is NPR 480,188,207 and loan loss provision related to non-
performing assets calculated as per NRB directives is NPR 299,029,323 which is 62% of NPA. Also, the

total loan loss provision to NPA is 159.60%.

Particulars This Year Previous Year m
o

Pass loan (performing loans) 41,862,309,346 37,173,760,406 4,688,548,940 12.61

Non-Performing Loans (NPL)
Restructured/rescheduled -

Substandard 204,262,785 110698314 93,564,471 84.52
Doubtful 105,447,643 56502602 48,945,041 86.62
Loss 228,580,678 119131289 109,449,389 91.87
Gross Loans & Advances 42,400,600,452 37,460,092,611 4,940,507,841

NPL ratios:

Gross NPL to Gross Loans & Advances 1.27%

Net NPL to Net Loans & advances 0.50%

6.9. Concentration of Deposits, Loans & Advances and Contingents
(NPR Million)

Loans & Advances and Deposits &
) ) Non Funded
Particulars Bills Purchased Borrowings

16 July 2018 | 15 July 2017 | 16 July 2018 | 15 July 2017 | 16 July 2018 | 15 July 2017

Total Amount Outstanding 42,400.60 37,460.09 47,982.81 43,713.19 46,881.03 38,292.11
Highest Exposure of a Single Unit 1,133.94 785.28 2,167.45 4,073.19 1,403.21 1,107.50
Concentration of exposure 2.67% 2.10% 4.52% 9.32% 2.99% 2.89%

For the calculation of concentration, loans and advances is total loans extended to the customers except
staff loans and interest accruals on loans and the deposits is total deposits from the customers excluding

interest payables.

Single Obligor Limit and Sector-wise Limit (Directive No. 3) for both funded and non-funded are within the
limit as prescribed by NRB directives.

6.10. Regulatory Reserve
As per the NRB Directive 4/075 clause 3 the bank is required to credit an amount equal to the adjustments

made as per NFRS while preparing Opening Statement of Financial Position and NFRS compliant financial
statements of succeeding years to the Regulatory Reserve The amount shall be transferred from Retained
Earning to the Regulatory Reserve in the Statement of Changes in Equity. Accordingly the bank has

credited the following amounts:
Amount in NPR

2074/75

Accrued interest recognized as income 77,362,062
Investment Property 87,827,855
Deferred tax assets 22,311,801
Actuarial loss 47,982,512

235,484,230

Total
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6.11. Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve
As per the NRB Circular # Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi./Niti/Partipatra/Kakhagha/11/073/74 on the Corporate Social
Responsibility, the Bank has allocated 1% of the net profit of current fiscal year for CSR activities. The
amount allocated for corporate social responsibility reserve is NPR 11,440,353and NPR 12,003,819
respectively for current year and previous year.

Amount in NPR

2074/75 2073/74

Opening as on Shrawan 1 12,003,819 -
Addition during the year 11,440,353 12,003,819
CSR expense during the year (3,448,416) -
Closing as on Ashad end 19,995,756 12,003,819

6.12. Staff Training and Development Fund
As per the NRB Circular # Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi./Niti/Partipatra/Kakhaga/10/073/74 4ka the bank shall spend 3% of
the total Personnel expenses of preceding year on Staff training and development. Further if such amount
could not be spent, short amount shall be credited to Staff training and development fund which shall be
spent in the next year. Accordingly bank has spent NPR 13,475,965 during FY 2074/75 against mandatory
requirement of NPR 13,956,499. Hence NPR 480,534 has been credited to Staff training and development
fund.

Amount in NPR

I S 7. 2073/74

Personnel expenses of previous year 465,216,638 401,647,380
3% of above 13,956,499 12,049,421
Staff training & development expense during the year charged to reserve 4,758,592 -
Staff training & development expense during the year charged to P&L 13,475,965 7,290,829

Transferred to reserve 480,534 4,758,592
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NOTES TO NFRS COMPLIANT FINANCIALS AS PER NRB CIRCULAR NO BAI. BI. NI.
Bl/ NITI/PARIPATRA/KAKHAGA/23/074/75.

1. The above figures may undergo changes on completion of statutory audit and/or as per the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.
2. On implementation of NFRS, the previous periods' figures have been revised, wherever necessary

in accordance with the NFRS Compliant Financial statement
format provided by NRB and the principles and policies adopted by the Bank in accordance with

NFRS.

3, Interest income on loans and advances are shown on accrual basis.

4, Personnel Expenses includes employment bonus provision calculated at 10% of the profit before
bonus and tax calculated as per NFRS Profit.

5 All the reserves and surplus have been created based on the net profit as per NRB Directive No.

4 and the difference in the profit as per NFRS and NRB Directive no. 4 have been transferred to
Regulatory reserve.

6. Provision for Gratuity and leave have been provided for as per estimated actuarial valuation and
hence actuarial gain/loss has not been separately disclosed and it will change as per the Actuary
valuation Report.

7. The bank, while complying NFRS, has applied appropriate accounting judgment as having
potentially material impact on the financial statements and exercise judgment in making
accounting estimates. Further, financial assets and liabilities have been classified in accordance
with the requirements of NFRS and consistently applied in the comparative period also.

Related Party Disclosures

1. Group Financial Statements include Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited (Parent Company) and Nepal
Bangladesh Capital Ltd. (Fully owned Subsidiary Company).

2. All the Intra Group transactions are conducted in arm's length basis.

3, The intercompany transaction between the Bank and its subsidiary up to this quarter end is as
follows:

- The bank has held current deposit of NPR. 199,592,120 of its subsidiary as at 16 July 2018
(Ashadh 32, 2075).

Above figure has been eliminated from the Statement of Financial Position.

Segment Reporting:

The bank has identified the key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations that
assist the bank in decision process and to allocate the resources. It will help the management to assess
the performance of the business segments that has been identified as below. The business segments
identified are Business Banking, Trade Finance, Treasury and Others. All operations between the
segments are conducted on pre-determined transfer price. Treasury & International Department acts as
the fund manager of the bank.
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Notes on segmental Reporting:

1. The disclosure on segmental reporting has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
NFRS-8.

2. Business Banking includes all loan and advances provided to the customers except Trade
financing such as Trust Receipt Loan and in lieu of settlement of non-funded obligations.

S Treasury segment includes activities pertinent to bonds, treasury bills, placements, foreign
exchange and investment in shares of other organization.

4. All other activities other than above-mentioned segments have been presented under Others
Category.

Reconciliation of Net Profit as per NFRS Complied Financial Statements and Financial
Statement prepared as per NRB Directives
and Local GAAP:

NPR '000
Profit/(Loss) Before Regulatory Adjustment 1,269,844
Interest income recognised on accrual basis (100,386)
Loan Loss Provision reversal during the year under GAAP (186,208)
Impairment on loans and advances under NFRS 90,887
Reversal of provision on Non-Banking Assets (51,430)
Reversal of write back of provison on Non-Banking Assets 9,013
Reversal of provison for Investment (22,069)
Deferred Guarantee Commission 6,202
Reversal of staff bonus as per GAAP (175,068)
Staff Bonus as per NFRS 200,467
Tax Expenses as per GAAP (467,656)
Tax Expenses as per NFRS 534,362

Profit/(Loss) After Regulatory Adjustment 1,107,958
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BRANCH OFFICES
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Kathmandu Valley:
Rajendra Prasad Adhikari
Corporate Branch, Kamaladi
Ph. No. 4233780/81/82

Binod Ranjit
Lalitpur Branch, Kumaripati
Ph. No. 5008721/5554011

Rabin Shakya
Kritipur Branch, Tyanglaphat
Ph. No. 4670633/1123

Santosh Bhattarai
Newroad Branch, Newroad
Ph. No. 4241368/4224477

Usha Dhungel
Bhaktapur Branch, Sallaghari
Ph. No. 6613170

Rekha Pradhan
Imadole Branch, Lalitpur
Ph. No. 5204202

Meen Bahadur Rawal
Bhaisepati Branch, Lalitpur
Ph. No. 5590028

Sanjeeb Sharma
Kapan Branch, Aakshedhara, Kapan
Ph. No. 4823335

Krishna Hari Bhandari
Maharajgunj Branch, Kathmandu
Ph. No. 4376565

Ujwal Bajracharya
Main Branch, Bijulibazar
Ph. No. 4780770/4781195

Harish Shrestha
Balaju Branch, Balaju
Ph. No. 4383768/4384170

Subarna Man Shrestha
Chabhil Branch, Kathmandu
Ph. No. 4482692

Hari Prasad Koirala
Kalimati Branch, Kalimati
Ph. No. 4277298/4284936

Nabin Prasad Shrestha
Jorpati Branch, Jorpati
Ph. No. 4910997/4910828

Khagendra Baskota
Koteshwor Branch, Kathmandu
Ph. No. 4600219/220

Santosh Trital
Maitidevi Branch, Kathmandu
Ph. No. 4440335/36

Outside Kathmandu Valley:
Anjana Lohani Pandey
Battar Bazar Branch, Nuwakot
Ph. No. 010 560256

Diwash Adhikari
Birtamode Branch, Jhapa
Ph. No. 023 545724

Bhim Raj Pokharel
Chainpur Branch, Bajhang
Ph. No. 092 421431

Ravi Bhatta
Janakpur Branch, Janakpurdham
Ph. No. 041 521548

Bishnu Raj Rayamajhi
Bhairahawa Branch, Rupandehi
Ph. No. 071 521659

Sushma Pant
Kushma Bazar Branch, Parbat
Ph. No. 067 421327

Anjan Koirala
Butwal Branch, Butwal
Ph. No. 071 544845

Prakash Neupane
Salyan Branch, Salyan
Ph. No. 088 400182

Chandra Bahadur Shrestha
Khajura Branch, Banke
Ph. No. 081 560428

Ram Kumar Shrestha
Hetauda Branch, Makawanpur
Ph. No. 057 525282

Ratna Kala Rawal
Surkhet Branch, Birendranagar
Ph. No. 083 520220

Anjalee Shakya
Lekhnath Branch, Kaski
Ph. No. 061 411445

Sagendra Bhakta Pradhananga
Birgunj Branch, Parsa
Ph. No. 051 523689

Deepak Khadka
Dharchula Branch, Khalanga Bazar
Ph. No. 093 420242

Ishwori Prasad Pokhrel
Baglung Branch, Baglung
Ph. No. 068 522872

Keshab Gautam
Nepalgunj Branch, Dhamboji, Banke
Ph. No. 081 415021

Bharat Bharati
Sankranti Bazar Branch, Tehrathum
Ph. No. 026 680052

Padam Raj Upreti
Daldale Branch, Nawalparasi
Ph. No. 9855070642

Balkrishna Shrestha
Biratnagar Branch, Biratnagar
Ph. No. 021 530523

Rajendra Kumar Dhakal
Dang Branch, Ghorahi Bazar
Ph. No. 082 563796

Krishna Prasad Timsina
Itahari Branch, Sunsari
Ph. No. 025 582411

Shree Krishna Paudel
Barhabise Branch, Sindhupalchwok
Ph. No. 011 489022

Raj Kumar Thapa
Biratchwok Branch, Morang
Ph. No. 021 545789

Tanka Prasad Limbu
Sindhuwa Branch, Dhankuta
Ph. No. 026 404169

Sushil Bahadur Singh
Dhangadi Branch, Chauraha,Dhangadhi
Ph. No. 091 521785

Shyam Kumar Rijal
Karsiya Branch, Morang
Ph. No. 021 565038

Tula Raj Shahi
Sinja Branch, Jumla
Ph. No. 9758004548

Devendar Awasthy
Pokhara Branch, Chipledhunga, Pokhara
Ph. No. 061 533134

Prakash Ghimire
Galchhi Branch, Dhading
Ph. No. 010 403127

Nirajan Dhungana
Sangurigadhi Branch, Bhedetar, Dhankuta
Ph. No. 026 400078

Saroj Babu Tiwari
Dharan Branch, Mahendrapath, Dharan
Ph. No. 025 530166

Tilak Raj Bhatta
Jhalari Branch, Kanchanpur
Ph. No. 099 540067

Sudeep Dhakal
Chattar Branch, Terhathum
Ph. No. 9851142173

Roshan Raj Rajkarnikar
Dhunche Branch, Rasuwa
Ph. No. 010 540014

Kranti Kumar Sapkota
Musikot Branch, Rukum
Ph. No. 088 530364

Suresh Budhathoki
Panchkhapan Branch, Sankhuwasabha
Ph. No. 029 411084

Kiran Kumar Pradhan
Narayanghat Branch, Chitwan
Ph. No. 056 570962

Krishna Kumar Adhikari
Phidim Branch, Panchthar
Ph. No. 024 521081

Bijay Thapa
Chhatragunj Branch, Arghakhanchi
Ph. No. 077 690436

Abhishek Adhikary
Bhojpur Branch, Bhojpur
Ph. No. 029 420713

Binod Dhital
Khaireni Branch, Chitwan
Ph. No. 056 521081

Sharada Prasad Bhattarai
Bhumlu Branch, Kavrepalanchok
Ph. No. 9741473634

Durga Bahadur Kafle
Salpasilicho Branch, Bhojpur
Ph. No. 9816313473

Dilli Bahadur Karki
Makawanpurgadhi Branch, Makawanpur
Ph. No. 9849656094

Diwash Kumar Sarraph
Dewahi Gonahi Branch, Rautahat
Ph. No. 9845428941

Diwakar Lal Karna
Bardibas Branch, Mahottari
Ph. No. 044 550154

Khem Raj Bhattarai
Chandrauta Branch, Kapilbastu
Ph. No. 076 540526

Suman Subedi
Damouli Branch, Tanahu
Ph. No. 065 560880/81

Sujan Khanal
Brahmapuri Branch, Sarlahi
Ph. No. 9851067147

Ram Sharan Yadav
Bishnu Branch, Sarlahi
Ph. No. 9844037325

Sagar Kunwar
Sandhikharka Branch, Arghakhanchi
Ph. No. 077 420965

Ajit Kumar Jha
Koudena Branch, Sarlahi
Ph. No. 9854035716

Pradeep Kumar Thakur
Dhanauiji Branch, Dhanusha
Ph. No. 9813094594

Pankaj Bhatta
Chandev Branch, Kanchanpur
Ph. No. 9848751003

Lil Bahadur Rokaha
Chandranighapur Branch, Rautahat
Ph. No. 055-540670/72

Krishna Kumar Shah
Arnama Branch, Siraha
Ph. No. 9852020660

Rochak Kathet
Fedap Branch, Terhathum
Ph. No. 9842369537

Badri Bikram Thapa
Simara Branch, Bara
Ph. No. 9855069020

Ghana Shyam Basnet
Rajarani Branch, Dhankuta
Ph. No. 9855069645

Dhruba Raj Pokharel
Bulingtar Branch, Nawalpur
Ph. No. 9851170643

Sanjaya Kumar Yadav
Parwanipur Branch, Bara
Ph. No. 051 410069

Milan Karki
Fikkal Branch, llam
Ph. N0.9842032011

Min Raj Adhikari
Kallimati Rampur Branch, Salyan
Ph. No. 9849180380

Swadhin Singh Basnet
Hapure Branch, Dang
Ph. No. 082 403056/57

Deb Sharan Raut
Chandranagar Branch, Sarlahi
Ph. No. 9861905813
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